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Comtech Telec ommuni cat ions  Corp. (www.comtechtel.com)

is an innovative player in the domestic and global high technology markets.

Comtech pursues opportunities in three interrelated market segments:

telecommunications transmission, RF microwave amplifiers and mobile data

communications services. In each of these segments, growth is driven by the

increasing demand for telecommunications infrastructure and network and

messaging services. 

T e l e c om mu n i c a t i o n s  T r a n s m i s s i on

Our telecommunications transmission segment provides sophisticated 

products and systems for information transmission in satellite, over-the-hori-

zon microwave and wireless line-of-sight telecommunications systems. The

demand for telecommunications is increasing worldwide as emerging

economies seek to modernize their infrastructure and as increasingly infor-

mation-sensitive markets introduce new telecommunications services.

Growth in the telecommunications industry is also being accelerated by both

technological advances and deregulation.

Comtech EF Data Corp., located in Tempe, Arizona, designs and manufac-

tures equipment used in commercial and defense satellite communications

applications. The equipment includes modems, frequency up converters and

down converters, solid state power amplifiers and satellite transceivers.

These products comprise a broad range of receiving and transmitting 

equipment for satellite earth stations offering a variety of state-of-the-art

technical capabilities with respect to performance, complexity and value.

Comtech Systems, Inc., located in Orlando, Florida, provides high-quality,

reliable telecommunications solutions with products and systems utilizing a

variety of technologies, including digital over-the-horizon microwave, digital

satellite and wireless line-of-sight microwave for national and international

commercial and defense applications.

Comtech Antenna Systems, Inc., located in St. Cloud, Florida, designs, 

manufactures and markets a wide variety of fiberglass and aluminum 

antennas for over-the-horizon microwave and satellite communications

applications, including distributed network programming, cable and broad-

cast television and radio, as well as other forms of information and enter-

tainment distribution.

R F  M i c r o w a ve  Am p l i f i e r s

Comtech PST Corp., located in Melville, New York, is a leading independent

supplier of broadband high power, high performance RF microwave 

amplifiers. PST is one of a limited number of companies designing, develop-

ing, manufacturing and marketing high power broadband amplifiers for use in

a variety of applications, including cellular and wireless base stations, high

power testing systems, defense systems, medical testing systems, electro-

magnetic compatibility instrumentation and satellite communications.

M ob i l e  D a t a  C om mu n i c a t i o n s  S e r v i c e s

Comtech Mobile Datacom Corp., located in Germantown, Maryland, is a full-

service supplier of satellite-based mobile data communications services for

the commercial and government land transportation, remote sensing, utility

and aviation markets. These web-enabled services are provided through

leased satellite capacity, utilizing our network, mobile transceivers and satel-

lite earth station gateway. This segment is currently providing mobile termi-

nal units and message communications services to the U.S. Army.

Comtech has grown substantially in recent years as evidenced by net sales

increasing from $24.7 million in fiscal 1997 to $135.9 million in fiscal 2001, a

compound annual growth rate of 53%.  This growth has occurred within our

internal operations, as well as through acquisitions. During this period of

growth, our employee base has increased from approximately 200 to 

more than 650. More than 275 distinct Comtech products are in service in

over 100 countries.

With a leading-edge portfolio of product offerings, a focus on our core 

businesses, a dedicated and talented employee base and strong financial 

condition, we believe Comtech is well positioned to be a market leader in

the business segments we serve.

A B O U T  C O M T E C H



2 0 0 1  F I N A N C I A L  H I G H L I G H T S

Fiscal Year  Ended July 31, 2001 2000 (3) 1999 (2) 1998 1997

Net Sales $ 135,931,000 $  66,444,000 $  37,886,000 $  30,114,000 $  24,746,000

Operating  Income $ 13,155,000 $ 5,805,000 $ 2,827,000 $ 1,452,000 $ 638,000

EBITDA $ 19,730,000 $ 7,954,000 $ 4,337,000 $ 2,658,000 $ 1,693,000

Net Income $ 6,714,000 $ 4,242,000 $ 1,773,000 $ 1,104,000 $ 484,000 

EPS - Diluted (1) $ 0.85 $ 0.68 $ 0.39 $ 0.27 $ 0.12

Stockholders’ Equity $ 65,565,000 $  57,782,000 $  18,357,000 $  12,093,000 $  10,878,000

Book Value Per Share (1) $ 8.83 $ 7.95 $ 4.18 $ 3.08 $ 2.79

Backlog $ 50,094,000 $  50,538,000 $  38,637,000 $  15,452,000 $  14,724,000

Shares-Diluted (1) 7,910,000 6,280,000 4,573,000 4,166,000 3,906,000

Closing Stock Price $ 14.55 $ 14.375 $ 11.875 $ 4.333 $ 2.208

Note: 

(1) Reflects a three-for-two stock split effective July 30, 1999 and equity offering of 2,645,000 shares on February 17, 2000.

(2) Excludes a non-recurring tax benefit resulting from a reduction in the Company’s valuation allowance against deferred tax assets and a loss from 

discontinued operations.  On a pro-forma basis, excluding the non-recurring items, diluted EPS on income before discontinued operations, 

assuming a normal effective tax rate of approximately 35%, would be $0.39 per share and net income would be $1,773,000.

(3) Excludes non-recurring in-process research and development charges, integration costs related to the Company’s acquisition of certain assets 

and liabilities of EF Data Corp. and a loss from discontinued operations.  On a pro-forma basis, excluding the non-recurring items, operating 

income would be $5,805,000 and assuming a normal effective tax rate of approximately 37%, diluted EPS would be $0.68 per share and net 

income would be $4,242,000.

These financial highlights should be read in conjunction with the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements  and Management’s Discussion and Analysis

of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
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Fiscal 2001 was yet another record breaking year

for Comtech. Our financial performance was outstanding,

climbing to record levels by every important measure.  We

accomplished these results while driving our business forward,

integrating our acquisitions, developing new products and main-

taining our leadership position in our technologies.

Our accomplishments have been so significant, in fact, that they

mark the transformation of Comtech into a very different com-

pany from what it was just a year ago. 

Nowhere is this more apparent than in our top line growth.

Two years ago, when annual revenues amounted to less than $38

million, we established a goal that Comtech would be a $100-mil-

lion company by fiscal 2002.  At the time, that goal may have

struck some observers as overly ambitious to say the least.  But

we didn’t merely reach it in fiscal 2001 - a year ahead of sched-

ule - we roared past it.  Our revenues for the year, $135.9 

million, were more than double the prior year’s record total of

$66.4 million.

Net income also set a new record: $6.7 million or $0.85 per

diluted share, compared with $4.2 million or $0.68 per diluted

share, and $1.8 million or $0.39 per diluted share in fiscal years

2000 and 1999, excluding non-recurring items.  Operating

income and EBITDA (earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation

and amortization) were substantially higher than the preceding

years.   

What’s equally important, we begin fiscal 2002 with a healthy

balance sheet and a strong position in two of our three core 

market niches: telecommunications transmission and RF

microwave amplifiers. In our third and newest market, mobile

data communications services, we are firmly positioned for future

growth.  The system we have developed for the U.S. Army is

slowly but surely being established as the government standard in

mobile data location tracking and data messaging technology, and

it is rapidly becoming an important competitor in commercial

markets. 

While most of last year’s dramatic increases resulted directly

from our July 2000 purchase of the satellite communications busi-

ness of EF Data, which was accretive to earnings from the outset,

our other core businesses also achieved record revenues and did

so despite difficulties encountered by many telecommunications

companies during last year. 

The causes of the recent downturn in the telecommunications

market are complex and not entirely clear.  Whatever the reasons

though, the world’s inventory of telecommunications equipment

has swelled, and while the process of working through this excess

goes on, the industry - Comtech inevitably included - will be

affected.  Compounding this of course will be the fallout from the

tragic events of September.

But as our results for fiscal 2001 indicate, our strong position in

the markets we serve helped us to weather the economic down-

turn that was firmly in place throughout the second half of fiscal

2001.  We also believe that such strength will be critical in achiev-

ing our goals in fiscal 2002, which promises to be a challenging

year for all telecommunications companies.    

The Telecommunications Transmission segment of our busi-

ness was once again a standout performer in fiscal 2001, spear-

heading our revenue and profitability growth.  We believe we are

now the principal provider of products and systems in two impor-

tant parts of this market segment: over-the-horizon microwave

communications and satellite ground stations.  And with our

broad and comprehensive product line we give network and sys-

tem providers the one-stop-shopping they want and need.

In the second half of fiscal 2001, we strengthened our RF

Microwave Amplifier segment by acquiring the commercial satel-

lite, medical and government product lines of Ericsson

Corporation’s MPD Technologies subsidiary.  This acquisition has

brought us new customers, new types of amplifier technology and

new growth opportunities.  In addition to complementing our

own strengths in our three principal amplifier product lines 

(satellite communications, instrumentation and defense), it has

positioned us for the first time as a supplier of  amplifiers for 

medical oncology instrumentation and commercial aircraft 

air-to-ground satellite communications purposes.  There are

exciting growth opportunities in these areas, and we are pursuing

them vigorously.

The newest market segment being served by the company, the

Mobile Data Communications Services business made a sub-

stantial contribution to our financial results in 2001 with revenues

increasing six-fold. Our technology employs satellites, ground sta-

tions and the internet to provide users in the public and private

sectors with a better, more cost-effective way of locating, 

monitoring and maintaining two-way communications with

mobile assets around the world. 

We moved steadily forward with our U.S. Army contract,

which has a total potential value of over $400 million, for a glob-

al movement tracking system (MTS).  The Army to date has

placed orders for more than 1,200 MTS units, and late in the fis-

cal year the Company received a Full Production Decision from

the Program Executive Officer for Standard Army Management

Systems.  This decision permits the Army MTS Project Office to

T o  O u r  S h a r e h o l d e r s



decide to field the MTS throughout the entire Army. We see

this as an important expression of confidence in Comtech’s

performance which, we believe, opens the way to an accel-

erated deployment of the MTS in the year ahead.

On the commercial front, we received our first non-U.S.

mobile data communications order from a value-added

reseller in Venezuela for use by commercial trucking opera-

tions.  This order is just one example of the numerous appli-

cations of our technology in emerging commercial markets.

The FCC awarded Comtech a license for the operation of

25,000 mobile earth terminals over the next ten years.  The

issuance of this license facilitates the possibility of a full rollout

of the Comtech MTS system both for the U.S. Army and for

commercial customers.

During fiscal 2001 we strengthened our senior manage-

ment team with the addition of Robert Rouse as chief finan-

cial officer and the promotion of former CFO Pres Windus

to group vice president overseeing the Comtech PST Corp.

and Comtech Mobile Datacom Corp. operating units.  Edwin

Kantor, former chairman of the investment banking firm

Drexel Burnham Lambert, joined our board of directors.  He

succeeds Dr. John Payne, who made many important contri-

butions during his eight years on the board and found it nec-

essary to resign in order to devote more time to his duties as

CEO at Nucomm Corp.

Looking ahead to the new fiscal year, we expect the glob-

al economy to experience continuing difficulty.  We believe,

however, that the opportunities in our markets make this an

excellent time to invest in product development and thereby

lay the foundation for sustained growth in the years ahead.

Accordingly, research and development spending is today a

much higher percentage of Comtech’s revenue than it 

has been historically.  We regard this as highly worthwhile

because it should lead to growth on our top and bottom lines

over the long term.  

Our balance sheet continues to be an important strategic

asset as we move into the future.  Among other things, our

financial strength gives us the ability to pursue attractive

acquisition opportunities.  Though we will continue to be

prudent in evaluating possible acquisitions, we will also con-

tinue to be on the lookout for those that make sense for the

company and its shareholders.  The right kinds of acquisitions

are those that sharpen our competitive edge, enhance our

technology portfolio, broaden our ability to offer superior

products - and do all these things relatively quickly, not at

some vaguely defined future time. 

We have, once again, established a goal to combine inter-

nal product development with acquisitions to increase our

sales above the $300 million mark by fiscal 2004. This will

require, on average, sales gains of 30% annually over the next

3 years.

Our strategy to reach this new goal continues to be based

on leveraging our technology leadership, winning a bigger

share of our increasingly global markets, maintaining our lead-

ership position in all key areas, providing superior customer

value, and lowering customers’ costs without sacrificing value.

In the period ahead, in addition to pursuing the right kinds of

acquisitions, our priorities will include the possibility of mak-

ing strategic alliances aimed at increasing our penetration of

the markets we are targeting.

Comtech has a growing reputation as a creator of exciting

products and solutions.  I am confident that this reputation

will continue to grow in the year ahead, and that the actions

we are taking today - the investments we are making - will

yield important benefits for years to come.  We are grateful

to our employees, business partners, customers and share-

holders for everything they contribute to making our success

possible. 

I would also like to say, on behalf of the board of directors

and all employees of Comtech, that our thoughts and prayers 

are with the families who experienced loss in the national

tragedy of September 11, 2001.

Fred Kornberg
Chairman, President and CEO

October 16, 2001



Comtech EF Data is also developing

networking solutions for its satellite earth

station customers. During fiscal 2001, we

completed the hardware installation of a

new video conferencing system at two

large banks in China. This system utilizes

our MIDAS satellite bandwidth on demand

s y s t e m .

Comtech Systems has continued to

maintain its position as the world’s leading

producer of transmission equipment for

over-the-horizon microwave communica-

tion systems and networks. Our patented

adaptive and fade-resistant modems

enable us to provide a level of reliability

and performance that solidifies our strong

p o s i t i o n .

In fiscal 2001, we received over-the-

horizon orders for an air defense satellite

system being installed in Brazil by Alcatel, a

tactical system that Nortel Networks is

providing to the United Kingdom’s Ministry

of Defense, and a project with high-densi-

ty mobile satellite terminals for the

Bahamas Telephone Company. These

projects have follow-on potential. For

example, the U.K. defense project could

open the way to contracts with other

NATO nations.

We are continuing to pursue commer-

cial customers for our over-the-horizon

products, with particular emphasis on the

oil and gas industries. Since this technology

enables communication over large bodies

of water, offshore oil platforms are a key

target market for us in this area.

The telecommunications transmission

segment of our business, which has been

the primary driver of our growth since the

mid-1990’s, once again grew at a rapid

pace in fiscal 2001. The essentials of our

growth strategy have been, and continue

to be, the development of new product

lines, the ongoing improvement of our cur-

rent products, and the aggressive protec-

tion of our leadership positions in the

satellite earth station and over-the-horizon

microwave markets. This strategy is being

implemented through internal growth, as

well as synergistic acquisitions.

Following is a summary of the significant

activities within our telecommunications

transmission business during the past year:

The most important achievement during

fiscal 2001 was the complete and success-

ful integration of EF Data, which was

acquired in July 2000, into our telecommu-

nications transmission operations. The

acquisition of EF Data has established us as

a leader in the design and manufacture of

equipment for satellite earth stations, with

particular strength in high-speed satellite

modems. Comtech has become the only

satellite earth station provider who is truly

a one-stop shop.

In the first half of fiscal 2001, Comtech 

EF Data made a number of quality and

engineering design improvements

to products that were purchased

in the acquisition. The second

half of the year brought further

improvements of this kind, along

with several new product intro-

ductions. Two new Turbo

Codec modems solved a satel-

lite link problem for the U.S.

Defense Department, and our

new CIM 550T satellite modem

has eliminated the need for seri-

al port connections, which can

cost up to $2,000 each.

Telecommunications
T r a n s m i s s i o n



“ The acquisition of EF Data 

has established us as a leader in 

the design and manufacture of 

equipment for satellite earth stations, 

with particular strength in high-speed 

satellite modems.”



Over the past several years, we believe

there has been essentially no growth in the

merchant market for RF microwave ampli-

fiers, and the situation was not helped by

the general slowdown in the telecommuni-

cations industry that began early in calen-

dar 2001.  The long-term outlook remains

good, however, with industry analysts fore-

casting growth at a rate in the neighbor-

hood of 15 percent per year.  

Because of the complexity of this 

technology, and because of the severity 

of the problems experienced when RF

microwave amplifier suppliers fail to per-

form up to expectations, an unusually high

proportion of work in this field is done in-

house by prime contractors.  Credibility is

therefore crucial to any supplier wishing to

win major new customers, so that

Comtech’s reputation as a developer and

producer of high-quality, high-performance

amplifiers has emerged as an increasingly

important competitive advantage.  We

have already had considerable success in

persuading major communications service

providers, telephony system producers

and defense contractors (Lockheed Martin,

Litton, Raytheon and GE, for example) to

outsource RF microwave amplifier work to

us.  The results of our work for such com-

panies, measured in terms of both cus-

tomer satisfaction and of product perform-

ance, provide ample grounds for optimism

about the prospects of our continuing

expansion of this part of our business.  

RF Microwave
A m p l i f i e r s

Long a supplier of radio-frequency and

kilowatt-level microwave amplifier prod-

ucts, Comtech greatly expanded its prod-

uct base in the second half of the 2001 

fiscal year with the acquisition of the 

commercial satellite, government and

medical product lines of Ericsson Corp.’s

MPD Technologies subsidiary.

This acquisition, which has been inte-

grated into our Comtech PST unit in

Melville, New York, has brought Comtech

new customers, new types of technology

and new growth opportu-

nities in the microwave

amplifier market.  For

example, it has made us

a source of amplifiers

for medical oncology

instrumentation applications

and for commercial air-to-

ground satellite communica-

tions.  Because it was complet-

ed late in the year, the acquisition had lit-

tle impact on fiscal 2001 results.  However,

it is expected to contribute significantly to

our revenues in the new year.

Other major events

of the past year include:

• Completion of deliveries under a 

contract from Raytheon to provide 

amplifiers for a British IFF (identification

friend or foe) project, and receipt of a 

follow-on order valued at $1.9 million.

• The first amplifier delivery under a 

Thales contract involving a jamming  

system for the Swiss Army.

• A $1.7 million contract from a new 

customer, Sonak, S.A., to supply 

amplifiers for use in a jamming project 

for the Greek Army.  



“ For example, it has made us a 

source of amplifiers for medical 

oncology instrumentation 

applications and for commercial 

air-to-ground satellite 

communications.”



The following were the most notewor-

thy events of an eventful fiscal 2001:

FCC license for mobile earth terminals.

The Federal Communications Commission

awarded Comtech a license for the opera-

tion of 25,000 mobile earth terminals (the

devices mounted atop each mobile unit)

over the next ten years.  The issuance of

this license facilitates the possibility of a full

rollout of the Comtech system both for

the Army and for other customers.   

First international order. We received

our first non-U.S. mobile data communica-

tions order from a value-added reseller in

Venezuela, where the system is being

introduced for use by commercial trucking

operations.  More than 1,500 terminals

have been ordered, and service has begun.

The Venezuela project includes a data con-

trol center in Caracas; it will be backed up

with Comtech’s own gateway facility in

Maryland.  Possible use of the system by

Venezuela’s oil and gas exploration and

distribution industries is being explored.    

“Full Production Decision” by U.S. Army.

In granting a Full Production Decision to

the mobile tracking system that Comtech

is putting in place for the Logistics

Command, the Army has freed the MTS

program office from having to receive

waivers for each future specific order.  This

reflects the success of the MTS project

thus far and the high priority given to it by

the Army, and it is expected to accelerate

future deployment of the system.  Colonel

Stephen Broughall, the Army’s MTS

Project Manager, said, “this is one of the

most streamlined procurement decisions

I’ve ever seen for an Army system.  Its

speed reflects not only the high priority

placed on fielding this system by the Army,

but the strong cooperation between

Comtech and our project office in success-

fully completing all the necessary tests and

e v a l u a t i o n s . ”

Mobile Data
Communications Services

Fiscal 2001 was another year of rapid

and significant progress for Comtech’s

mobile data communications services busi-

ness, the newest of our three business seg-

ments and one that is opening tremendous

new opportunities for long-term growth.

The technology developed by Comtech

employs satellites and ground stations to

provide users in the public and private sec-

tors with a better, more cost-effective way

of monitoring and maintaining two-way

communications with mobile assets

around the world.  The Comtech system is

now in use with the U.S. Army, and is

beginning to penetrate commercial mar-

kets both in the U.S. and overseas.  It

makes possible rapid, secure, real-time

communications with trucks, ships and 

a i r c r a f t .

Comtech first emerged as a global

leader among providers of mobile data

communications systems in 1999, when

the company was selected to provide the

Army Logistics Command’s mobile track-

ing system.  The Army awarded Comtech

an eight-year contract with a total poten-

tial value of more than $400 million.  Since

then we have been moving ahead with

implementation of the Army program

while simultaneously preparing to apply

our technology to the needs of a broad

range of other potential users both in the

government and in private industry.  



“ The Army awarded 

Comtech an eight-year 

contract with a total 

potential value of more

than $400 million.”
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Note:  As used in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, the terms “Comtech,” “we” and “our company” mean
Comtech Telecommunications Corp., Comtech’s subsidiaries and Comtech’s predecessor corporation. 

All shares and per share information has been adjusted to reflect the three-for-two stock split that occurred in
July 1999.  See Comtech’s Form 8-K dated July 6, 1999.

PART I

ITEM 1.  BUSINESS

Overview

We design, develop, produce and market sophisticated wireless telecommunications transmission products
and solid state high-power broadband amplifiers for commercial and government purposes.   Our telecommunications
products are used in point-to-point and point-to-multipoint telecommunications transmission and reception
applications such as satellite communications, over-the-horizon microwave systems, and cable and broadcast
television.  Our broadband amplifier products are used in communications, cellular and medical instrumentation and
defense systems.

We have expanded our business to offer satellite mobile data communications services.  In June 1999, this
business won a contract from the U.S. Army which, subject to government funding and deployment decisions, provides
for the purchase of up to $418.2 million in mobile terminal units and global message communications services over an
eight-year period.  We believe our mobile data communications products and services will afford the Company
important competitive advantages as we endeavor to expand this business with other government agencies and into
commercial markets.

Revenue growth over the past five years has been driven by the global expansion of telecommunications
services such as satellite systems, cable television, cellular telephone systems, PCS telephony and the Internet.  We
meet the high performance requirements of our customers by drawing upon proprietary expertise in key microwave
amplification and transmission technologies developed over more than 34 years of operations.

A majority of our sales in fiscal 2001 were of products developed by us within the last 5 years, including, for
example, linear amplifiers sold to cellular and PCS telephony system manufacturers for testing their systems’
amplifiers, and turbo codec modems sold to satellite systems integrators and service providers for use in voice, data,
video and fax transmission over satellite.  Our internally funded and customer funded research and development
expenses aggregated $11.8 million, $6.9 million and $3.8 million in fiscal 2001, 2000, and 1999 representing 8.7%,
10.4% and 10.0% of our net sales in those fiscal years.

Telecommunications Industry Trends

The demand for telecommunications is increasing worldwide as emerging economies seek to modernize their
infrastructure and as increasingly information-intensive markets introduce new telecommunications services.  The
telecommunications industry has expanded rapidly over the last decade and is forecasted to continue to expand despite
the adverse impact in recent months of a soft economy, due to the following major factors:

Deregulation and Privatization.  Many developing countries that had previously not committed significant
resources to or placed a high priority on developing and upgrading their communications systems are now doing so,
primarily through deregulation and privatization.  A significant number of these countries do not have the resources,
or have large geographic areas or terrain that make it difficult, to install extensive land-based networks on a cost-
effective basis.  This provides an opportunity for satellite and other wireless communications services systems to meet
the requirement for communications services in these countries.

Growing Demand for Data Communications Services.  Factors contributing to the growing demand for
communications services include worldwide economic development and the increasing globalization of commerce. 
Businesses have a growing need for higher bandwidth services to communicate with their customers and employees
around the world and are increasingly reliant upon Internet and multimedia applications.  We expect demand for these
kinds of higher bandwidth services to grow in both developed and developing countries.
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Increasing Cost-Effectiveness.  The relative cost-effectiveness of satellite and other wireless
telecommunications services is a major factor driving the growth in areas with rapidly developing telecommunications
infrastructures.  These developing infrastructures often cover large geographic areas, where population concentrations
that are separated by significant distances require a technology whose cost and speed of implementation is relatively
insensitive to distance. 

Technological Advances.  Technological advances continue to increase the capacity of telecommunications
networks and reduce the overall cost of the systems and the services they deliver.  This increases the number of
potential end users for the services and expands the available market.  We believe that recent technological
developments, such as bandwidth on demand and signal processing methods, will continue to stimulate demand.

Product and Service Segments

We conduct our business through three decentralized but complementary product and service segments:
telecommunications transmission, RF microwave amplifiers, and our mobile data communications services business.  The
segments operate through individual operating units, each of which maintains its own sales, marketing, product
development and manufacturing functions.  We believe that this organizational structure allows the key personnel of
each operating unit to be more responsive to their particular markets and customers.  Brief descriptions of our business
segments and operating units follow.

 Telecommunications transmission — modems, frequency up converters and down converters, solid
state high-power amplifiers, VSAT transceivers and antennas for satellite ground station applications and
adaptive modems and microwave radios for over-the-horizon microwave communications systems.  Primary
markets include satellite systems integrators and communications service providers, defense contractors and
oil companies.  Customers include, among others, Globecomm Systems, Hughes Network Systems, IDB
Worldcom, DirecTV, ATT Alascom, Northrop Grumman, BP Amoco and Exxon.

 RF microwave amplifiers — solid state high-power broadband amplifier products in the microwave
and radio frequency (RF) spectrums for a wide range of applications, including cellular and wireless
instrumentation, medical systems, jamming and identification friend or foe (IFF) and other defense systems.
 Target markets are communications service providers, cellular and PCS telephony system manufactures and
defense contractors.  Customers include, among others, Motorola, Ericsson, Nokia Telecommunications,
Condor Systems, Siemens Medical Systems, Lucent Technologies, Litton Systems, Raytheon, Lockheed
Martin and the U.S. government.

 Mobile data communications services — secure, real time two-way messaging between mobile
platforms, such as land vehicles, rail and aircraft, or remotely placed fixed site sensors and user headquarters
through our Germantown, Maryland gateway satellite earth station.  The network employs leased satellite
capacity to communicate between the mobile platform and user headquarters via satellite, terrestrial and
Internet links. Depending upon the end-user's needs, our system can be configured to provide a wide range
of data applications, ranging from simple location tracking to messaging, e-mail, broadcasting of
information, meter, gauge and other sensor monitoring.

We believe that the global expansion of telecommunications, particularly in developing countries in Asia,
South America, the Middle East and Europe, represents a key opportunity for the continued growth of our
telecommunications business.  Included as international sales are sales made to domestic companies for inclusion in
products which are sold to international customers. Sales for use by international customers represented approximately
46.2%, 71.4% and 60.1% of our net sales in fiscal years 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

Our product designs are based on both analog and digital microwave technologies.  Digital microwave
technology can significantly enhance performance of telecommunications systems.  We have invested significant
resources in developing our technological expertise, and work closely with customers and potential customers to
develop product lines in market niches where we believe our expertise can enable us to become a leading supplier.
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Business Strategies

We manage our business with the following principal corporate strategies:

• Operate on a decentralized basis to maximize responsiveness to customers.
• Continue product innovation through investment in research and development.
• Capitalize on synergies among our business segments to secure larger contracts.
• Pursue acquisitions and investments in complementary businesses, technologies, products and

services.

Specific operating strategies for our business segments include:

Telecommunications transmission.

• Continue broadening our line of satellite ground station products to better serve our customers
with a full line of video, data and voice products.

• Enhance our existing products to serve rapidly developing markets requiring higher speed and
greater bandwidth, such as emerging applications for wireless Internet access.

• Maintain our market leadership in over-the-horizon microwave technologies by broadening
applications and increasing product performance.

RF microwave amplifiers.

• Continue to incorporate the latest advances in solid state device electronics.

• Maintain our broadband technology in this product sector to encourage system integrators and
end users to outsource their requirements rather than pursue this specialized field in-house.

• Broaden our product line to include medical instrumentation.

• Combine high-power amplifiers and solid state switches for advanced communications
applications.

Mobile data communications services.

• Maximize the opportunities available to supply the Logistics Command under the U.S. Army
contract.

• Pursue identified opportunities to offer our products and services to other government agencies.

• Penetrate the emerging markets for commercial uses, particularly in the land mobile and remote
sensing markets.

Important Developments

In June 1999, the U. S. Army awarded us a contract which, subject to government funding and deployment
decisions, provides for the purchase of up to $418.2 million in mobile transceiver units and global data messaging
communication services over an eight-year period.  Through July 31, 2001, we received orders for $15.9 million under
this contract, which can be terminated by the U.S. Army at any time for its convenience. We cannot assure you that we
will receive any more such orders.
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On February 17, 2000, we completed a public offering of our common stock in which we sold 2,300,000
shares at an offering price of $17.50 per share.  On February 29, 2000, the underwriter exercised its over-allotment
option to purchase an additional 345,000 shares.  The net proceeds of the offering and exercise of the over-allotment
option was approximately $42.4 million.

In July 2000, we acquired the business of EF Data, the satellite communications division of Adaptive
Broadband Corporation for approximately $54.2 million in cash.  The acquisition is being accounted for under the
“purchase method” of accounting.  Accordingly, we allocated the purchase price to the assets purchased and the
liabilities assumed based upon the estimated fair values at the date of the acquisition.  The excess of the purchase price
over the fair values of the net assets acquired was approximately $26.8 million, of which $10.2 million was allocated
to in-process research and development and was expensed as of the acquisition date, $7.5 million was valued as
purchased technology, $3.6 million was valued as other purchased intangibles and $5.5 million has been recorded as
goodwill. Forty million dollars of the purchase price was supplied through institutional secured borrowings bearing
interest at 9.25% due in installments through 2005, and the balance from internal company funds.  We combined this
operation with our existing Arizona satellite communications operations included in our telecommunications
transmissions segment. 

In April 2001, we acquired certain assets and product lines of MPD Technologies, Inc.  for $12.7 million.
The acquisition was accounted for under the “purchase method” of accounting.  Accordingly, we have recorded the
assets purchased and the liabilities assumed based upon the estimated fair values at the date of acquisition.  The excess
of the purchase price over the fair values of the net assets acquired was approximately $9.7 million, of which $1.8
million has been allocated to customer base, $1.8 million has been allocated to existing technology and $6.1 million
has been allocated to goodwill.  The purchase price was financed through $10 million of institutional secured
borrowings and the balance from internal company funds.  The secured borrowing bears an interest rate of 8.5% and
requires interest only payments through June 2005 at which time the entire principal is due.  We combined this
operation with our Comtech PST Corp. operation in our RF microwave amplifiers segment.

Telecommunications Transmission Business Segment

The demand for telecommunications is increasing worldwide as emerging economies seek to modernize their
infrastructure and as increasingly information-intensive markets introduce new telecommunications services.  The
telecommunications industry has expanded rapidly during the last decade due to technological advances and
deregulation.  Advances in technology have lowered per-unit communications costs, increased product reliability and
encouraged a proliferation of new and enhanced communications products and services.

In making procurement decisions, customers for telecommunications transmission equipment must weigh the
relative costs and advantages of the six presently available transmission technologies: copper cable, fiber optic cable,
high frequency radio systems, wireless microwave systems, over-the-horizon microwave systems and satellite systems.
 Rarely is a complete communications network or system based solely on one of these technologies.  Transmission of
information can be routed through a combination of technologies, each employed where most cost-effective.  Our
products are used in systems employing satellite, over-the-horizon microwave, terrestrial line-of-sight microwave and
wireless technologies.

Copper Cable, the traditional transmission medium most familiar to customers, is being replaced and
supplemented by the other media, particularly for high-volume broadband and long distance
transmissions where it has substantial capacity, cost and reliability limitations.

 Fiber Optic Cable is best suited to high-volume broadband, point-to-point, short or long distance links
where its advantages−capacity, quality and security−justify the long lead-time and high cost to equip and
install a network.

 High frequency (HF) radio systems employ long wavelengths which are propagated beyond line-of-
sight distances either by surface waves traveling along the earth's perimeter or by skywave reflection of
the transmitted waves off different layers of the ionosphere.  This mode of transmission is very limited in
capacity.

 Wireless and line-of-sight microwave communications systems generally used for point-to-point
communications, employ signals with extremely short wavelengths which travel only in line-of-sight
paths over relatively short distances, generally under 30 miles, can be quickly and easily installed,
require relatively low initial capital investment and provide broadband capacity which can be upgraded
and expanded over time.
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 Over-the-horizon microwave communication systems transmit signals over distances from 30 to 600
miles by reflection of the transmitted signals off the troposphere, an atmospheric layer located
approximately seven miles above the earth's surface.  Such systems offer a high level of reliability and
security, are limited in capacity but are used for transmission over unfriendly terrain.

Satellite communications systems have grown and diversified in response to demand for efficient
broadband and accurate long distance voice and video communication and digital information exchange.
 In a satellite communications system, information is relayed to and from microwave transmitting and
receiving stations on the ground by means of a low earth orbit (LEO), medium earth orbit (MEO), or
geostationary earth orbit (GEO) satellites, which are generally placed in an orbit from 600 to 22,300
miles above the earth's equator.  Satellite communications systems are particularly useful where long-
range, broadband high capacity and high quality point-to-point or point-to-multipoint communication
transmission is desirable.  As few as three GEO satellites can provide global communications coverage. 
These systems, which use microwave technology, are well suited for rapid introduction of long distance
service in remote areas or where communication alternatives are unavailable, such as mobile, shipboard
or defense applications.

Our Comtech EF Data Corp. operating unit, located in Tempe, Arizona, designs and manufactures equipment
used in commercial and defense satellite communications.  The equipment includes modems, frequency up converters
and down converters, solid state power amplifiers and satellite VSAT transceivers, which combine our frequency
converters with solid state, high-power amplifiers.  These products comprise a broad range of receiving and
transmitting equipment offering a variety of state-of-the-art technical capabilities with respect to performance,
complexity and value.  Our turbo codec modem product line offers significantly improved performance, power and
bandwidth performance over traditional systems.  This operating unit is a combination and integration of our Comtech
Communications Corp. subsidiary with our newly acquired EF Data product line.  The acquisition of EF Data’s
business expanded Comtech’s growing telecommunications capabilities and enhanced Comtech’s product offerings,
distribution reach and market presence.  Additionally, it enabled Comtech to enter the growing satellite networking
solution business.

Our Comtech Systems, Inc. operating unit, located in Orlando, Florida, has a product line consisting
primarily of equipment for over-the-horizon microwave systems and networks.  It has a turnkey capability that ranges
from system and network planning through equipment and system training and operation and maintenance programs.
 It also supplies satellite telecommunications systems by combining its products with equipment manufactured by our
other operating units and third parties.  Comtech Systems, Inc. markets its products and services to oil and gas
companies and other commercial users, foreign defense commands and system prime contractors.  We believe that
Comtech Systems, Inc.’s products, which employ adaptive modem digital transmission technology, offer high-speed
data (8 mbs) benefits over the traditional analog and digital (2 mbs) over-the-horizon microwave products offered by
its sole competitor.

Our Comtech Antenna Systems, Inc. operating unit, located in St. Cloud, Florida, designs, manufactures, and
markets a wide variety of fiberglass and aluminum antennas for over-the-horizon microwave and satellite
communication applications, including distributed network programming, cable and broadcast television and radio as
well as other forms of information and entertainment distribution.  Comtech Antenna Systems, Inc. designs antennas
for specific types of telecommunications systems and, typically, sells standardized products to independent distributors,
prime contractors and end-user customers.  Comtech Antenna Systems, Inc.’s antenna product line includes fixed and
mobile antenna systems and specialized multi-beam satellite antenna systems that are capable of receiving signals
simultaneously from many independent satellites located up to 60 degrees apart.

RF Microwave Amplifier Business Segment

Amplifiers reproduce signals with greater power, current or voltage amplitude.  Indispensable in the world of
signal processing, amplifiers can be as tiny as a microchip for a hearing aid or as massive as a multi-story building for
transmitting radio signals to submerged submarines or to outer space.

In telecommunications, solid state high-power amplifiers are used to amplify signals for radiation from
transmitting antennas in satellite or other wireless telecommunications systems.  They are also used to amplify signals
in defense,  radar and electronic jamming systems.  In the laboratory, solid state, high-power amplifiers are used to test
the performance of high power microwave and wireless electronic system components used in cellular and PCS
networks.
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Solid state, high-power amplifiers are also used in electromagnetic compatibility and susceptibility testing. 
The proliferation of electronic systems in products such as automobiles, computers, wireless telephones, radios,
televisions, medical equipment, aircraft and other products has led to increasingly serious problems with
electromagnetic interference.  Manufacturers, therefore, test these electronic systems for electromagnetic compatibility
and susceptibility using broadband high-power RF microwave amplifiers such as those we manufacture.  For example,
such testing may be used to determine whether the various electronic systems in a commercial aircraft are likely to be
affected by the use of laptop computers, wireless telephones or video games by passengers in flight.

We believe our Comtech PST Corp. operating unit, located in Melville, New York, is one of a small number
of companies designing, developing, manufacturing and marketing broadband high-power large signal amplifiers in
the microwave and RF spectrums.  Our recent acquisition of assets and product lines from MPD Technologies, Inc.
discussed above, further expands our product offerings in this segment for applications, including wireless and air-to-
ground satellite telecommunications, medical oncology systems, instrumentation and defense systems.  Comtech PST
Corp. sells its products to domestic and foreign commercial users, government agencies and prime contractors.  We
believe it is an innovative supplier of these amplifiers and related processing equipment.

Mobile Data Communications Services Business Segment

The demand for mobile data communications services and products has increased dramatically in recent years
for both government and commercial applications.  This demand has been driven by advances in digital technology
coupled with the need to better locate, track, manage, monitor and communicate with mobile and fixed assets.  The
transmission of information may be done over various systems, i.e., terrestrial, cellular or satellite, depending on the
most cost-effective approach to meet the application's requirements. 

We are continuing to develop and market a Web-enabled, satellite-based mobile data communications system
for the land mobile, remote sensing, utility, aviation and maritime markets.  Applications include asset location and
tracking, two-way mobile messaging, e-mail and automated reading of sensors, including meters and gauges. 
Through our satellite earth station gateway in Germantown, Maryland, we can route signals to and from mobile or
fixed, remote terminals via leased satellite capacity.  Customers can access their messages or data through an Internet
or terrestrial connection to their headquarters’ Web sites.

While the service is satellite-based, we do not own satellites.  Worldwide coverage is available today, and
multiple system coverage is available in many regions as well.  Satellite capacity, as required, can be leased for our
data communications services, which represents a significant advantage in consideration of the increasingly
competitive environment for sale or lease of satellite capacity.  As a result, we believe that our data services costs will
be among the lowest in the industry, and ongoing product development efforts will enable us to maintain this
competitive advantage.

In early 1999, Comtech Mobile Datacom Corp. led a multi-company team in competing for the U.S. Army’s
Movement Tracking System, a system to be deployed by the U.S. Army for global use in tracking its assets and
communicating by message in real time with these vehicles from fixed and mobile command centers.  The contract
was awarded to Comtech Mobile Datacom Corp. in June 1999.  The contract allows for purchases of up to $418.2
million of equipment and services over an eight-year period, and is also open to other government agencies to procure
their tracking and messaging requirements.  While the U.S. Army and other government agency business is expected
to become a major source of our growth in the near term, we intend to expand our customer base for mobile data
communications services and products into commercial markets.   The system, which will be used by the U.S. Army,
can be made immediately available for use as a commercial system.  Through July 31, 2001, we have received orders
for $15.9 million under this contract, which can be terminated by the U.S. Army at any time for its convenience.
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Sales, Marketing and Customer Support

Our international sales (including sales to prime contractors’ international customers) from all three business
segments represented approximately 46.2%, 71.4%, and 60.1% of total net sales in fiscal 2001, 2000 and 1999,
respectively. We expect that international sales will remain a substantial portion of our total sales for the foreseeable
future.

Domestic commercial sales represented approximately 30.7%, 19.8% and 24.3% of our total net sales in fiscal
2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.  The balance of our sales were to U.S. government departments or agencies and
represented 23.1%, 8.8% and 15.6% of our total net sales in fiscal 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

There were no customers in fiscal 2001, which constituted 10% or more of our total net sales.   Sales to one
customer, a major U.S. aerospace prime contractor, represented 43.1%, and 27.0% of our total net sales for fiscal 2000
and 1999, respectively.  A substantial portion of our sales are derived from a relatively small number of large customer
contracts.

Each of our operating units conducts its own sales and marketing efforts.  In some instances, our operating
units may bundle other units' products.  Sales and marketing strategies vary with particular markets served and include
direct sales through sales, marketing and engineering personnel, sales through independent representatives, value-
added resellers or a combination of the foregoing.  Our operating units enter into sales distribution agreements for
certain products with distributors.  Unlike sales representatives, who merely find customers on a commission basis,
some of our distributors purchase products from us for resale.  We intend to continue to expand domestic and
international marketing efforts through independent sales representatives, distributors and value-added resellers.

Our management, technical and marketing personnel establish and maintain relationships with customers. 
Our strategy includes a commitment to provide ongoing customer support for our systems and equipment.  This
support involves providing direct access to engineering staff or trained technical representatives to resolve technical or
operational problems.

Backlog

Our backlog as of July 31, 2001 and 2000 was approximately $50.1 million and $50.5 million, respectively. 
We expect that a substantial majority of the backlog as of July 31, 2001 will be recognized as sales during fiscal 2002.
 We received payments with respect to progress billings and advance payments aggregating approximately $2.1
million as of July 31, 2001 in connection with orders included in the backlog at that date.  At July 31, 2001
approximately 23.4% of that backlog consisted of U.S. government contracts, subcontracts and government funded
programs, approximately 49.7% consisted of orders for use by foreign customers (including sales to prime contractors’
international customers) and approximately 26.9% consisted of orders for use by domestic commercial customers.

Our backlog consists solely of orders believed to be firm.  In the case of contracts with departments or
agencies of the U.S. government, including our Mobile Datacom contract discussed above, orders are only included in
backlog to the extent funding has been obtained for such orders.  All of the contracts in our backlog are subject to
cancellation at the convenience of the customer or for default in the event that we are unable to perform under the
contract.

Variations in backlog from time to time are attributable, in part, to the timing of our preparation and
submission of contract proposals, the timing of contract awards and the delivery schedules on specific contracts.  As a
result, we believe our backlog at any point in the fiscal year is not necessarily indicative of the total sales anticipated
for any particular future period.  Our Comtech Antenna and Comtech EF Data businesses operate under short lead
times and usually generate sales out of inventory, as is also the case for a significant portion of our Comtech PST
amplifier business.

Manufacturing and Service

Our manufacturing operations consist principally of the assembly and testing of electronic products we design
and build from purchased fabricated parts, printed circuits and electronic components and, in the case of antennas, the
casting of fiberglass antennas.  We employ formal quality management programs and other training programs,
including International Standards Organization's (ISO 9000) quality procedure registration programs.  Our Comtech
PST Corp., Comtech Systems, Inc. and Comtech EF Data Corp. operating units have been qualified for ISO 9001.
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Our ability to deliver products to customers on a timely basis is dependent, in part, upon the availability and
timely delivery by subcontractors and suppliers of the components and subsystems that we use in manufacturing our
products.  Electronic components and raw materials used in our products are generally obtained from independent
suppliers.  Some components are standard items and are available from a number of suppliers.  Others are
manufactured to our specifications by subcontractors.  We obtain certain components and subsystems from a single
source or a limited number of sources.  We believe that most components and equipment are available from existing or
alternative suppliers and subcontractors.  A significant interruption in the delivery of such items could have a material
adverse effect on our business and results of operations. 

Research and Development

The technology used in our products is subject to rapid development and frequent change.  Our business
position is in large part contingent upon the continuous refinement of our scientific and engineering expertise and the
development, either through research and development or acquisitions, of new or enhanced products and technologies.

A majority of our sales in fiscal 2001 were of products developed by us within the past five years, including,
for example, linear amplifiers sold to cellular and PCS telephony system manufacturers for testing their systems’
amplifiers and turbo codec modems sold to satellite systems integrators and service providers for use in high
performance voice, data, video and fax transmission.

Our aggregate research and development expenditures (internal and customer funded) were 8.7%, 10.4% and
10.0% of total net sales in fiscal 2001, 2000 and 1999 respectively. We reported internal research and development
expenses of $10.2 million, $2.6 million and $2.0 million in fiscal 2001, 2000 and 1999 respectively, representing
7.5%, 4.0% and 5.3% of total net sales, respectively, for these periods. A portion of our research and development
efforts relates to the adaptation of our basic technology to specialized customer requirements and is recoverable under
such contracts, and such expenditures are not included in our research and development expenses for financial
reporting purposes.  During fiscal 2001, 2000 and 1999, we were reimbursed by customers for such activities in the
amounts of  $1.7 million, $4.3 million and  $1.8 million, respectively. 

Patents and Licenses

Although we own or hold licenses for a number of patents, patents and licenses have been of substantially less
significance in our business than our scientific and engineering know-how, production techniques, the timely
application of our technology and the design, development and marketing capabilities of our personnel.  We rely on
the laws of unfair competition, restrictions in licensing agreements and confidentiality agreements to protect such
knowledge and techniques.

Competition

Our product businesses are highly competitive and characterized by rapid technological change.  In addition,
the number of potential customers for our products is limited.  Our growth and financial condition depend, among
other things, on our ability to keep pace with such changes and developments and to respond to the sophisticated
requirements of an increasing variety of electronic equipment users.  Many of our competitors are substantially larger,
have significantly greater financial, marketing, research and development, technological and operating resources and
broader product lines than we do.  A significant technological breakthrough by others, including smaller competitors
or new companies could have a material adverse effect on our business.  In addition, certain of our customers have
technological capabilities in our product areas and could choose to replace our products with their own.

In the market for mobile data communications services, there are several much larger competitors with
existing systems.  The most prominent of these competitors is Qualcomm Incorporated.  Existing competitors are
aggressively pricing their products and services and may continue to do so in the future.  We anticipate that new
competitors will enter the market in the future.  Competitors continue to offer new value-added products and services,
which we may be unable to match on a timely or cost-effective basis.  Increased competition may impact margins
throughout the industry.

We believe that competition in all of our markets is based primarily on product performance, reputation,
delivery times, customer support and price.  Due to our decentralized organizational structure and proprietary know-
how, we believe we have the ability to develop, produce and to deliver equipment on a cost-effective basis faster than
many of our competitors.
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Key Personnel/Employees

We believe our success is dependent upon the continued contributions of our key management personnel,
including the key management at each of our operating units, and depends to a significant extent upon Fred Kornberg,
our Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and President.  Many of our key personnel, particularly the key engineers,
would be difficult to replace, and are not subject to employment or non-competition agreements.  The development of
our mobile data communications services business is particularly dependent upon Joel R. Alper, the President of
Comtech Mobile Datacom Corp.  The success of our telecommunications transmissions segment is particularly
dependent upon Richard L. Burt, President of our Comtech Systems, Inc. subsidiary and Robert L. McCollum,
President of our Comtech EF Data Corp. subsidiary.  Our growth and future success will depend in large part upon our
ability to attract and retain highly qualified engineering, sales and marketing personnel.  Competition for such
personnel from other companies, academic institutions, government entities and other organizations is intense. 
Although we believe we have been successful to date in recruiting and retaining key personnel, we may not be
successful in attracting and retaining the personnel we require in order to continue to grow and operate profitably. 
The management skills that have been appropriate for our business in the past may not continue to be appropriate if
our business continues to grow and diversify.

At July 31, 2001, we had 651 employees, 349 of whom were engaged in production and production support,
180 in research and development and other engineering support and 122 in marketing and administrative functions. 
None of the employees are represented by a labor union.  We believe that our employee relations are good.

Compliance with Federal, State and Local Environment Protection Laws

We are subject to a variety of local, state and federal governmental regulations relating to the storage,
discharge, handling, emission, generation, manufacture and disposal of toxic or other hazardous substances used to
manufacture our products, particularly in connection with the fabrication of fiberglass antennas by Comtech Antenna
Systems, Inc.  We believe that we are currently in compliance in all material respects with such regulations and that
we have obtained all necessary environmental permits to conduct our business.  To date, compliance with federal, state
or local environment protection laws has not had a material effect on our capital expenditures, earnings or competitive
position, and we do not expect that such compliance will have a material effect in the future.

ITEM 2.  PROPERTIES

Our corporate offices are located in a portion of the 46,000-square foot facility on more than two acres of land
in Melville, New York, which also houses Comtech PST.   We lease this facility from a partnership controlled by our
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and President.  The lease, as amended, provides for our exclusive use of the
premises as they now exist for an initial term of ten years through December 2001.  We have the option to extend the
term of the lease for an additional ten-year period and a right of first refusal in the event of a sale of the facility.  We
have exercised our option to extend the lease for an additional ten-year period.  The base annual rental under the lease
is subject to adjustments.

We lease the 32,000-square foot facility on eight acres of land used by Comtech Antenna Systems, Inc. in St.
Cloud, Florida from a Florida land trust which was controlled by the President of Comtech PST.  The lease provides
for our exclusive use of the premises as they now exist for a term expiring September 2003.  We have the option to
extend the term of the lease for an additional five-year period.  The base annual rental under the lease is subject to
adjustments.   The President of Comtech PST sold his interest in the facility during fiscal 2001.

We lease a 72,500-square foot facility for Comtech Systems, Inc. in Orlando, Florida from an unrelated third
party.  The lease provides for the exclusive use of the premises as they now exist through April 2002.  The base annual
rental is subject to adjustments.
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We lease the 32,000-square foot facility on eight acres of land used by Comtech Antenna Systems, Inc. in
St. Cloud, Florida from a Florida land trust which was controlled by the President of Comtech PST.  The
lease provides for our exclusive use of the premises as they now exist for a term expiring September 2003.
We have the option to extend the term of the lease for an additional five-year period.  The base annual
rental under the lease is subject to adjustments.   The President of Comtech PST sold his interest in the
facility during fiscal 2001.

We lease a 72,500-square foot facility for Comtech Systems, Inc. in Orlando, Florida from an unrelated
third party.  The lease provides for the exclusive use of the premises as they now exist through April 2002.
The base annual rental is subject to adjustments.

We lease a 113,000-square foot facility in Tempe, Arizona for our Comtech EF Data Corp. operating unit
from an unrelated third party.  The lease provides for the exclusive use of the premises as they now exist
through January 2006.

We lease 7,100-square feet of space located in Germantown, Maryland that is used by Comtech Mobile
Datacom Corp. from an unrelated third party.  This lease provides for the exclusive use of the premises as
they now exist through August 2004.

ITEM 3.  LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Two former employees have commenced an action in the United States District Court, District of New
Jersey, against the Company and others asserting, among other things, breach of certain restricted stock
agreements and seeking unspecified monetary damages, specific performance of the restricted stock
agreements, including the issuance of an aggregate 225,000 shares of the Company’s Common Stock for a
purchase price of $.10 per share, and other relief.  The Company believes it has meritorious defenses to all
the claims asserted and intends to vigorously defend the action.  It has filed an answer and has asserted
certain counterclaims.  There is a pending motion of the plaintiffs to dismiss the counterclaims and to strike
certain of the affirmative defenses.  The Company has opposed the motion and cross-moved to dismiss the
claims of one plaintiff.

We are subject to certain legal actions, which arise, in the normal course of business.  We believe that the
outcome of these actions will not have a material effect on our consolidated financial position or results of
operations.

ITEM 4.  SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to our stockholders during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year ended July 31,
2001.
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PART II

ITEM 5.  MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON
EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Our common stock trades on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol “CMTL.”  The following table
shows the quarterly range of the high and low sale prices for our common stock as reported by the Nasdaq
National Market.  Such prices do not include retail markups, markdowns, or commissions.

Common Stock

  High Low
Fiscal Year Ended  7-31-00
First Quarter $ 14.56  8.00
Second Quarter    29.50 14.13
Third Quarter    26.25              10.38

         Fourth Quarter       17.13                8.63

Fiscal Year Ended  7-31-01
First Quarter $ 19.88 12.00
Second Quarter    19.50   9.00
Third Quarter    19.00 11.00
Fourth Quarter    17.99 11.45

Dividends

We have never paid cash dividends on our common stock and we intend to continue this policy for
the foreseeable future.  We expect to use earnings to finance the development and expansion of our
business.  Our Board of Directors reviews our dividend policy periodically.  The payment of dividends in
the future will depend upon our earnings, capital requirements, financial condition and other factors
considered relevant by our Board of Directors.

Approximate Number of Equity Security Holders

As of October 12, 2001, there were approximately 743 holders of the Company's common stock.  Such
number of record owners was determined from the Company shareholders' records and does not include
beneficial owners of the Company's common stock held in the names of various security holders, dealers
and clearing agencies.

ITEM 6.  SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table shows selected historical consolidated financial data for Comtech.  Detailed historical
financial information is included in the audited consolidated financial statements for fiscal years 2001 and
2000.
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Year Ended July 31,
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Consolidated Statement of                   
Operations Data:
Net Sales $135,931      66,444 37,886 30,114 24,746
Cost of sales     87,327        45,942     26,405     21,330     17,670
Gross profit 48,604 20,502 11,481 8,784 7,076
Expenses:
    Selling, general and administrative 22,707 12,058 6,554 6,013 5,415
    Research and development 10,190          2,644       2,022       1,319       1,023
    In-process research and development                -    10,218           -            -            - 

   Amortization of intangibles        
2,552

           230           
78

             -              -

        
35,449

       25,150       8,654       7,332       6,438

Operating income (loss) 13,155 (4,648) 2,827 1,452 638
Other expenses (income):
    Interest expense 4,015 381 204 234 284
    Interest income (2,303) (1,511) (65) (36) (33)
    Other (income) expense, net           841             201         (39)         (30)       (151)

Income (loss) from continuing              
operations before income taxes 10,602 (3,719) 2,727 1,284 538
Provision (benefit) for income taxes        3,888               85    (3,754)         

180
          54

Income (loss) from continuing    
operations 6,714 (3,804) 6,481 1,104 484

Discontinued operations:
 Loss from operations of discontinued
segment (less applicable income tax
benefit of $79 in 2000 and $320 in 1999) - (137) (622) - -
   Loss on disposal of discontinued
segment, including provision of $430 for
operating losses during phase out period
(net of income tax benefit of $306)                -                 -       (594)              -              -
Net income (loss) $     6,714       (3,941)       5,265       1,104         484

Basic income (loss) per share:
    Income  (loss) from continuing           
   operations

$       0.91         (0.67) 1.56 0.28 0.13

    Loss from discontinued operations                -          (0.02)      (0.29)              
-

             
-

    Basic income (loss) $       0.91           (0.69)        1.27        0.28        0.13
Diluted income (loss) per share:
    Income (loss) from continuing            
   operations $       0.85          (0.67) 1.42 0.27 0.12
    Loss from discontinued operations                -          (0.02)      (0.27)              -              -
    Diluted income (loss) $       0.85          (0.69)        1.15        0.27        0.12
Weighted average number of common
shares outstanding-
    Basic 7,348 5,663 4,143 3,902 3,873
Potential dilutive common shares           562                  -         430         264           33
Weighted average number of common
and common equivalent shares
outstanding assuming dilution-
   Diluted        7,910          5,663       4,573       4,166       3,906
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Other Consolidated Operating Data:
Backlog at period-end $50,094      50,538 38,637 15,452 14,724
New orders 135,487 78,345 61,071 30,842 29,770
Research and development-internal        
     and customer funded 11,846 6,916 3,801 1,675 1,459
EBITDA (1) 19,730 7,954 4,337 2,658 1,693

(1) Earnings from continuing operations before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization and non-recurring
items.

As of July 31,
(In thousands)

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:
Total assets $ 146,988    126,031 29,847 19,710 17,960
Working capital 67,089 65,267 10,192 8,917 7,930
Long-term debt 42,000 37,900 - - -
Long-term capital lease obligations 2,157 908 959 1,445 1,310
Other long-term liabilities 259 367 - - -
Stockholders’ equity 65,565 57,782 18,357 12,093 10,878

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Overview

We design, develop, produce and market sophisticated wireless telecommunications transmission
products and systems and solid state high-power broadband amplifiers for commercial and government purposes.  Our
products are used in point-to-point and point-to-multipoint telecommunication applications such as satellite
communications, over-the-horizon microwave systems,  telephone systems and cable and broadcast television.  Our
broadband amplifier products are also used in cellular and PCS instrumentation testing and certain defense systems.

Our business consists of three segments: mobile data communications services, telecommunications
transmission, and RF microwave amplifiers.  We began reporting financial results on a segment basis in fiscal 1999.
Our sales of mobile data communications services may increase substantially if, when and as orders are received under
our contract with the U.S. Army and we penetrate other government and commercial markets for these services.

Our sales are made to domestic and international customers, both commercial and governmental. 
International sales (including sales to prime contractors for end use by international customers) are expected to remain
a substantial portion of our total sales for the foreseeable future due to the growing worldwide demand for wireless and
satellite telecommunication products and services and our expanded line of RF microwave amplifier product offerings
to meet these demands.

At times, a substantial portion of our sales may be derived from a limited number of relatively large customer
contracts, the timing of which cannot be predicted.  Quarterly sales and operating results may be significantly affected
by one or more of such contracts.  Accordingly, we can experience significant fluctuations in sales and operating
results from quarter to quarter.

Sales consist of stand-alone products and systems.  For the past five years we have endeavored to achieve
greater product sales as a percentage of total sales, because product sales generally have higher gross profit margins
than systems sales.  In the future, as our installed base of mobile data communications terminals is established, we
expect an increasing amount of our sales will be attributable to the recurring service revenue component of our mobile
data communications services segment.

We generally recognize income under contracts only when the products are shipped.  However, when the
performance of a contract will extend beyond a 12-month period, income is recognized on the percentage-of-
completion method.  Profits expected to be realized on contracts are based on total sales value as related to estimated
costs at completion.  These estimates are reviewed and revised periodically throughout the lives of the contracts, and
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adjustments to profits resulting from such revisions are made cumulative to the date of the change.  Estimated losses
on long-term contract-in-progress are recorded in the period in which such losses become known.

Our gross profit is affected by a variety of factors, including the mix of products, systems and services sold,
production efficiency, price competition and general economic conditions.

Selling, general and administrative expenses consist primarily of salaries and benefits for marketing, sales
and administrative employees, advertising and trade show costs, professional fees and amortization of deferred
compensation.

Our research and development expenses relate to both existing product enhancement and new product
development.  A portion of our research and development efforts is related to specific contracts and is recoverable
under those contracts because they are funded by the customers.  Such customer-funded expenditures are not included
in research and development expenses for financial reporting purposes but are reflected in cost of sales.

In the first quarter of fiscal 1999, we acquired the assets and assumed certain liabilities of two businesses
through newly formed, wholly-owned subsidiaries: Comtech Mobile Datacom Corp., our mobile data communications
services business; and Comtech Wireless, Inc., our wireless local loop business.  Both acquisitions were accounted for
using the purchase method of accounting. In June 1999, the U.S. Army awarded Comtech Mobile Datacom Corp. a
contract which, subject to, among other things, government funding and deployment decisions, provides for the
purchase of up to $418.2 million in mobile terminal units and global data communications services over an eight-year
period. Sales will be dependent upon annual government funding and deployment decisions.

Comtech Wireless, Inc. designed and manufactured wireless local loop systems for the rural and remote
telephony market.  Due to disappointing results and uncertain prospects, effective July 31, 1999, we adopted a plan to
liquidate Comtech Wireless, Inc. on or about January 31, 2000.  The results of operations for the segment have been
shown as a discontinued operation in the consolidated financial statements.  Comtech Wireless, Inc. did not have any
sales in fiscal 1999, 2000 and 2001.

In January 2000, we acquired certain assets and assumed certain liabilities of Hill Engineering Inc. (“Hill”) in
exchange for 50,000 shares of the Company’s common stock.  The acquisition was accounted for under the “purchase
method of accounting”.  The purchase price amounted to approximately $371,000, which principally represents the
fair value of the initial 30,000 shares of common stock to be issued to Hill. The remaining 20,000 shares were placed
in escrow and will only be released to the sellers if certain profit goals, as defined in the agreement are met and will be
recorded at fair value on the date when the profit goals are met.  This business is   part of the RF microwave amplifiers
segment.  The excess of the purchase price over the net assets acquired of approximately $606,000, net of
amortization, is included in goodwill in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

 In July 2000, we acquired the business of EF Data, the satellite communications division of Adaptive
Broadband Corporation for cash.  The acquisition was accounted for under the “purchase method” of accounting. 
Accordingly, we allocated the purchase price to the assets purchased and the liabilities assumed based upon the
estimated fair values at the date of the acquisition.  The excess of the purchase price over the fair values of the net
assets acquired was approximately $26.8 million, of which $10.2 million was allocated to in-process research and
development and was expensed as of the acquisition date, $7.5 million was valued as purchased technology, $3.6
million was valued as other purchased intangibles and $5.5 million has been recorded as goodwill. Forty million
dollars of the purchase price was supplied through institutional secured borrowings bearing interest at 9.25% due in
installments through 2005, and the balance from internal company funds.

In April 2001, we acquired certain assets and product lines of MPD Technologies, Inc.  for  cash. The
acquisition was accounted for under the “purchase method” of accounting.   Accordingly, we have recorded the assets
purchased and the liabilities assumed based upon the estimated fair values at the date of acquisition.  The excess of the
purchase price over the fair values of the net assets acquired was approximately $9.7 million, of which $1.8 million
has been allocated to customer base, $1.8 million has been allocated to existing technology and $6.1 million has been
allocated to goodwill.  The purchase price was financed through $10 million of institutional secured borrowings and
the balance from internal company funds.  The secured borrowing bears interest at a rate of 8.5% and requires interest
only payments through June 2005 at which time the entire principal is due.  We combined this operation with our
Comtech PST Corp. operation in our RF microwave amplifiers segment.

Results of Operations
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The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, certain income and expense items expressed as a
percentage of our net sales:

Year Ended July 31,
2001 2000        1999       

Net sales 100% 100% 100%
Gross margin 35.8 30.9 30.3
Selling, general and administrative expenses 16.7 18.1 17.3
Research and development expenses 7.5 4.0 5.3
Amortization of intangibles 1.9 0.4 0.2
Operating income (loss) from continuing operations 9.7 (7.0) 7.5
Interest expense (income), net 1.3 (1.7) 0.4
Income (loss) before income taxes 7.8 (5.6) 7.2
Net income (loss) 4.9 (5.9) 13.9

Comparison of Fiscal 2001 and 2000

Net Sales   Consolidated net sales were $135.9 million and $66.4 million for fiscal 2001 and 2000, respectively,
representing an increase of $69.5 million or 104.6%.  This increase was primarily due to the acquisition in July 2000
of EF Data.  This business, which is included in our telecommunications transmission segment, increased our product
offerings and broadened our customer base for satellite earth station equipment.  Sales from our telecommunications
transmission segment were $106.3 million or 78.2% of our total net sales in fiscal 2001 as compared to $53.3 million
or 80.2% of our total net sales in fiscal 2000.  Substantially all of the increase in the telecommunications transmission
segment was the result of the EF Data acquisition.  In fiscal 2001, sales from our RF microwave amplifier segment
were $16.4 million as compared to $11.0 million in fiscal 2000.  Approximately $2.7 million of this $5.4 million
increase was due to the acquisition we completed in April 2001 of certain assets and product lines of MPD
Technologies, Inc.  This acquisition has increased our product offerings and our customer base in our RF microwave
amplifier segment.  The RF microwave amplifier segment was 12.1% of our total net sales in fiscal 2001 as compared
to 16.5% in fiscal 2000.  Sales from our mobile data communications services segment were $13.2 million or 9.7% of
our total net sales in fiscal 2001 as compared to $2.2 million or 3.3% in fiscal 2000.  This increase of approximately
$11.0 million was primarily due to increased sales of our Movement Tracking System to the U.S. Army.  International
sales represented 46.2% of total net sales in fiscal 2001 as compared to 71.4% in fiscal 2000.  The decrease in the
percentage of international sales reflects the absence in fiscal 2001 of significant revenues from one customer for over-
the-horizon microwave equipment which occurred in fiscal 2000.  Domestic sales represented 30.7% of total net sales
in fiscal 2001 as compared to 19.8% in fiscal 2000. U.S. government sales represented 23.1% of total net sales in
fiscal 2001 as compared to 8.8% in fiscal 2000.  There were no customers in fiscal 2001 that represented 10% or more
of our total sales.  In fiscal 2000, sales to one customer, a major U.S. prime contractor for ultimate sale to an
international end user, represented 43.1% of total sales.   Sales during the second half of fiscal 2001 were adversely
impacted by the weakening economy.  Particular softness was experienced in our telecommunications transmission
segment as a result of the significant downturn in the telecommunications market.  We believe sales will continue to
be adversely impacted until such economic conditions improve.  Despite the difficult operating environment, the
Company was profitable in all four quarters of fiscal 2001.

Gross Profit  Gross profit was $48.6 million and $20.5 million for fiscal 2001 and 2000, respectively, representing an
increase of $28.1 million or 137.1%.  This increase was primarily due to the increase in sales volume.  Gross margin,
as a percentage of net sales, was 35.8% and 30.9% in fiscal 2001 and 2000, respectively.  The higher gross margin in
fiscal 2001 was largely due to the increase in the sale of satellite earth station equipment products by our
telecommunications transmission segment as a result of the EF Data acquisition.  Those products generally have a
lower per unit cost and yield a higher gross margin than most other products and systems we sell.

Selling, General and Administrative  Selling, general and administrative expenses were $22.7 million and $12.1
million in fiscal 2001 and 2000, respectively, representing an increase of $10.6 million or 88.3%.  This increase was
the result of additional expenses, including additional personnel, sales and marketing expenses and other
administrative expenses, required to support the higher sales volume.   As a percentage of sales, these expenses were
16.7% and 18.1% of total net sales for fiscal 2001 and 2000, respectively.
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Research and Development  Research and development expenses were $10.2 million and $2.6 million in fiscal 2001
and 2000, respectively, representing an increase of approximately $7.6 million or 285.4%.  The increase in fiscal 2001
was principally due to the continuation of research and development for the projects that were underway at the time of
our acquisition of EF Data in July 2000, as well as for expenses related to new product development and product
announcements for all of our businesses.  As an investment for the future we are continually enhancing and developing
new products and technologies.  Whenever possible, we seek customer funding for research and development to adapt
our products to specialized customer requirements.  During fiscal 2001 and 2000, customers reimbursed us $1.7
million and $4.3 million, respectively, which amounts are not reflected in the reported research and development
expenses.

Amortization of Intangibles  Amortization of intangibles was $2.6 million and $230,000 for fiscal 2001 and 2000,
respectively.  The increase in fiscal 2001 was primarily due to the full year of amortization expense relating to
goodwill and other identified intangibles associated with our acquisition of EF Data in July 2000.  The increase also
reflects the amortization of  intangibles resulting from our April 2001 acquisition of MPD Technologies. See
discussion below regarding recent accounting pronouncements affecting the future amortization of goodwill and other
intangibles.

In-Process Research and Development   There was no in-process research and development expense in fiscal 2001. 
In fiscal 2000, in connection with the acquisition of EF Data, $10.2 million of the purchase price was allocated to in-
process research and development.  Our financial statements for fiscal 2000 include a one-time charge of $10.2
million for the write-off of this amount in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Operating Income (Loss)   As a result of the foregoing factors, we had operating income from continuing operations
of $13.2 million in fiscal 2001 as compared to an operating loss from continuing operations in fiscal 2000 of $4.6
million.   Excluding the impact of the in-process research and development charge in fiscal 2000, operating  income
was $5.6 million.

Interest Expense   Interest expense was $4.0 million and $381,000 for fiscal 2001 and 2000, respectively, representing
an increase of approximately $3.6 million.  The increase was primarily due to the interest on the long term debt we
incurred in connection with the acquisition of EF Data in July 2000.  The original amount of the loan was $40.0
million payable over five years.  In connection with our acquisition of certain assets and product lines from MPD
Technologies, Inc. in April 2001, we borrowed an additional $10.0 million. 

Interest Income   Interest income was $2.3 million and $1.5 million for fiscal 2001 and 2000, respectively,
representing an increase of $792,000.  This increase in fiscal 2001 was primarily due to the increase in the amount of
cash available in excess of working capital requirements, principally as result of the proceeds received from a follow-
on stock offering completed in the third quarter of fiscal 2000.

Other Expense, Net  Other expense, net was $841,000 and $201,000 for fiscal 2001 and 2000, respectively.  The
amount in fiscal 2001 related to a loss of $990,000 realized upon the sale in March 2001 of a short-term investment
classified as available-for-sale, offset by royalty and other income of $149,000.  The amount in fiscal 2000 primarily
related to the loss realized upon the sale of a short-term investment classified as available-for-sale.

Provision for Income Taxes   The provision for income taxes in  fiscal 2001 reflects an effective tax rate of 36.7%. 
The fiscal 2000 provision for income taxes was effected by a change in the valuation allowance. (See note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements for further information regarding the provision for income taxes.)

Comparison of Fiscal 2000 and 1999

Net Sales  Consolidated net sales were $66.4 million and $37.9 million for fiscal 2000 and 1999, respectively,
representing an increase of $28.5 million or approximately 75.4%.  This increase was primarily due to increased sales
by our telecommunications transmission segment, principally to one customer, a major U.S. prime contractor, of
over-the-horizon microwave equipment.  Sales to this customer were $28.6 million and $10.2 million for fiscal 2000
and 1999, respectively, representing 43.1% and 27.0% of consolidated net sales for fiscal 2000 and 1999, respectively.
 The total order received from this customer in fiscal 1999 was approximately $43.6 million.  The balance of $4.8
million is expected to be recognized as revenue during fiscal 2001.  There were no other customers in fiscal 2000 or
1999 that represented 10% or more of consolidated net sales.  Included in the telecommunications transmission
segment are products for satellite earth stations.  Sales of these products increased 162.5% due to additional product
offerings which were partly the result of our acquisition of EF Data in July 2000.  Sales from our RF microwave
amplifier segment declined by approximately 24.0% compared to fiscal 1999, due to the timing of the receipt of
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expected follow-on orders.  Sales from our mobile data communications services segment increased from nominal
sales, less than 1%, in fiscal 1999 to 3.3% of consolidated net sales in fiscal 2000.  International sales increased by
approximately $24.7 million or 107.9%, representing 71.4% and 60.1%, of total net sales for fiscal 2000 and 1999,
respectively.  Domestic sales increased by $4.0 million or 43.5%, representing 19.8% and 24.3% of total net sales for
fiscal 2000 and 1999, respectively.  U.S. government sales decreased by $65,000 or 1.1%, representing 8.8% and
15.6% of total net sales for fiscal 2000 and 1999, respectively.

Gross Profit   Gross profit was $20.5 million and $11.5 million for fiscal 2000 and 1999, respectively, representing an
increase of $9.0 million or approximately 78.6%.  The increase was primarily due to the increase in sales volume in
fiscal 2000 compared to fiscal 1999.  Gross margin as a percentage of net sales was 30.9% and 30.3% in fiscal 2000
and 1999, respectively, due primarily to the increase in sales of products with lower per unit costs, which yield higher
gross margins.

Selling, General and Administrative  Selling, general and administrative expenses were $12.1 million and $6.6
million in fiscal 2000 and 1999, respectively, representing an increase of $5.5 million or approximately 84.0%.  This
was primarily due to the increase in costs associated with supporting increased sales such as administrative, selling
and marketing salaries and benefits, sales commissions, travel and other related expenses.  We also incurred additional
expenses related to our acquisition of EF Data including the integration of the facilities and workforce.

Research and Development  Research and development expenses were $2.6 million and $2.0 million in fiscal 2000
and 1999, respectively, representing an increase of $600,000 or approximately 30.8%.  As an investment for the future
we are continually enhancing and developing new products and technologies.  In fiscal 2000, the increase is primarily
due to expenses incurred by our recently acquired business, for the continuation of research and development for the
projects that were underway at the time of the acquisition.  Whenever possible, we seek customer funding for research
and development to adapt our products to specialized customer requirements.  During fiscal 2000 and 1999, customers
reimbursed us $4.3 million and $1.8 million, respectively, which amounts are not reflected in the reported research
and development expenses.

In-Process Research and Development  In connection with the purchase of EF Data, $10.2 million of the purchase
price was allocated to in-process research and development.  This allocation was part of the overall purchase price
allocation performed by an independent third party engaged by us.  The value of in-process research and development
is based upon new product development projects that were underway at the time of the acquisition and are expected to
eventually lead to new products but had not yet established technological feasibility and for which no future alternative
use was identified.  Our financial statements for fiscal 2000 include a one-time charge of $10.2 million for the write-
off of this amount in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Operating Income (Loss)  As a result of the foregoing factors, we had an operating loss from continuing operations of
$4.6 million for fiscal 2000 as compared to operating income of $2.8 million for fiscal 1999, representing a decrease
of $7.4 million.

Interest Expense  Interest expense was $381,000 and $204,000 for fiscal 2000 and 1999, respectively, representing an
increase of $177,000 or 86.8%.  The increase in fiscal 2000 was primarily due to the interest on $40.0 million of long-
term debt that we incurred during July 2000 that was used to partially finance the EF Data acquisition.  The balance of
interest expense in fiscal 2000 and all of the interest expense in fiscal 1999 was interest associated with our capital
lease obligations.

Interest Income  Interest income was $1.5 million and $65,000 for fiscal 2000 and 1999, respectively, representing an
increase of $1.4 million.  This increase was due to the increase in the amount of cash available to invest during this
period primarily as a result of the proceeds received from a follow-on stock offering completed in the third quarter of
fiscal 2000.  Interest income was primarily derived from the short term investments of the cash on hand in excess of
working capital requirements.
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Provision (Benefit) for Income Taxes  On income from continuing operations we had an income tax provision of
$85,000 in fiscal 2000 as compared to an income tax benefit in fiscal 1999 of $3.8 million.  Our income tax provision
is calculated according to the provisions of SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes”.  In applying the
provisions of SFAS No. 109, temporary differences due to the timing of the deductibility of items for income tax
purposes as compared to the timing of deductibility for financial reporting purposes, are recorded as deferred tax assets
and liabilities.   (See note 9 to the consolidated financial statements for further information  regarding the provision 
for income taxes.)

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our cash and cash equivalents position increased to $36.2 million at July 31, 2001 from $12.6 million at July
31, 2000. The increase of $23.6 million was largely the result of the sale in fiscal 2001 of the Company’s marketable
investment securities, which were $18.6 million as of July 31, 2000.

Net cash provided by operating activities was $4.8 million in fiscal 2001. Such amount reflects net income
for fiscal 2001 of $6.7 million, plus the impact of non-cash items such as depreciation and amortization aggregating
approximately $7.5 million, which was substantially offset by increases in accounts receivable and inventory. These
increases are driven by the expansion of our businesses during the past year. In addition, some of our product lines,
including our mobile data communications business, require long lead times for materials. Some of our customers
require a level of “off-the-shelf” inventory availability.

Net cash provided by investing activities was $10.9 million in fiscal 2001. Net proceeds from the sale of
marketable securities of $17.9 million were offset by capital expenditures and the purchase of a technology license
aggregating $3.3 million. Cash of $12.7 million was used to purchase certain assets and product lines from MPD
Technologies, Inc. which is discussed above under the caption ”Overview”. We received $9.0 million during fiscal
2001 in connection with final adjustments to the purchase price of EF Data, which is discussed above under the
caption “Overview”.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $7.9 million in fiscal 2001. In connection with the acquisition of
certain assets and product lines from MPD Technologies, Inc. in April 2001, we borrowed an additional $10.0 million
from an institutional lender. The $10 million bears interest at 8.5% and requires interest only payments until June
2005 at which time the entire principal amount is due. We also repaid $2.1 million in fiscal 2001 on the $40 million of
debt borrowed from the same institutional lender in connection with the EF Data acquisition. The $40 million bears
interest at 9.25% and is payable semi-annually, with interest, over a five-year period. Principal payments on capital
lease obligations amounted to $.7 million during fiscal 2001. Proceeds from the sale of stock and exercise of options
and warrants aggregated $.8 million.

We entered into new capital leases during fiscal 2001 in the amount of $2,456,000 for the purchase of capital
equipment and a technology license.

In August 2001, we prepaid $19.2 million of principal on the $40 million of debt incurred in connection with
the EF Data acquisition. After the prepayment, the aggregate remaining amount of principal outstanding relating to
the $50 million of borrowings associated with the EF Data and MPD Technologies acquisitions was $28.7 million.
There was no prepayment penalty as a result of the pay down, which was funded by available cash balances.

We believe that our cash and cash equivalents will be sufficient to meet our operating cash requirements for
at least the next year. In the event that we identify a significant acquisition that requires additional cash, we would
seek to borrow additional funds or raise additional equity capital.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2001, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 141, Business Combinations, and
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.  Statement 141 requires that
the purchase method of accounting be used for all business combinations.  Statement 141 also specifies criteria that intangible
assets acquired in a purchase method business combination must meet to be recognized and reported separately from
goodwill. Statement 142 will require that goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives no longer be amortized,
but instead tested for impairment at least annually in accordance with the provisions of Statement 142.  Statement 142 will
also require that intangible assets with definite useful lives be amortized over their respective estimated useful lives to their
estimated residual values, and reviewed for impairment in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.
121, Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed of. 

The Company adopted the provisions of Statement 141 effective July 1, 2001.  The adoption of Statement 141
had no effect on the financial position or results of operations of the Company.  Statement 142 is effective for the
Company beginning August 1, 2001.  At that time, any goodwill and intangible assets determined to have an
indefinite useful life that were acquired in a purchase business combination will not be amortized, but will be
evaluated for impairment in accordance with the provisions of Statement 142.

Statement 141 requires, upon adoption of Statement 142, that the Company evaluate its existing intangible
assets and goodwill that were acquired in a prior purchase business combination, and to make any necessary
reclassifications in order to conform with the new criteria in Statement 141 for recognition apart from goodwill.  Upon
adoption of Statement 142, the Company will be required to reassess the useful lives and residual values of all
intangible assets acquired in purchase business combinations, and make any necessary amortization period
adjustments by the end of the first interim period after adoption.  In addition, to the extent an intangible asset is
identified as having an indefinite useful life, the Company will be required to test the intangible asset for impairment
in accordance with the provisions of Statement 142 within the first interim period.  Any impairment loss will be
measured as of the date of adoption and recognized as the cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle in the
first interim period. 

As of August 1, 2001, the Company had unamortized goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives of $17.7 million.  Such assets will no longer be amortized under Statement 142.  The Company does not
believe that the goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives were impaired as of August 1, 2001.
Amortization expense relating to such assets in fiscal 2002 would be $1.7 million if Statement 142 was not adopted.

Forward-Looking Statements and Risk Factors

Many statements in this Form 10-K constitute “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section
27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.  These forward-looking
statements include:

• Statements of goals, intentions and expectations;
• Estimates of risks and of future costs and benefits; and
• Statements of the ability to achieve financial and other goals.

These forward-looking statements are subject to significant uncertainties because they are based upon or are
affected by:

• Management’s estimates and projections of U.S. and international economic and business conditions;
• Future laws and regulations; and
• A variety of other matters, including those described below.

Because of these uncertainties, actual future results may be materially different from the results indicated by
these forward-looking statements, which are inherently predictive and speculative.  The following are some of the risks
that could cause actual results to differ significantly from those expressed or implied by such statements.
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All of our businesses are subject to rapid technological change; we must keep pace with changes to compete
successfully.

We are engaged in businesses characterized by rapid technological change, evolving industry standards,
frequent new product announcements and enhancements, and changing customer demands.  The introduction of
products and services embodying new technologies and the emergence of new industry standards could render our
products and services obsolete or non-competitive.  The technology used in our products and services evolves rapidly,
and our business position depends, in large part, on the continuous refinement of our scientific and engineering
expertise and the development, either through internal research and development or acquisitions, of new or enhanced
products and technologies.  We may not have the economic or technological resources to be successful in such efforts
and we may not be able to identify and respond to technological improvements made by our competitors in a timely or
cost-effective fashion.  A significant technological breakthrough by others, including smaller competitors or new
firms, could have a material adverse impact on our business.

A slowing economy and continued reduction in telecommunications equipment and systems spending may
negatively affect our revenues and profitability.

During the second half of fiscal 2001, our revenues were negatively affected by the increasingly uncertain
economic environment both in the overall market, and more specifically in the telecommunications sector.   If the
economy continues to slow, some of our customers may reduce their budgets for spending on telecommunications
equipment and systems.  As a consequence, our current customers and other prospective customers may postpone,
reduce or even forego the purchase of our products and systems, which could adversely affect our revenues and
profitability.

Our mobile data communications services business is subject to risk.

Our mobile data communications services business has a limited operating history and to date has generated
modest sales.  It is subject to all of the risks inherent in the operation of a new business enterprise.  Moreover, our
business experience has been in producing products, not in providing services.  We may not be able to implement and
operate our mobile data communications services business successfully.  In addition to the other risk factors described
in this section, the risk factors applicable to our mobile data communications services business include the following:

• Although the U.S. Army contract obligates us to provide up to 56,000 mobile terminals and worldwide
satellite services over an eight year period as and when ordered by the U.S. Army and at the fixed prices
and other terms set forth in this contract, the U.S. Army is not obligated to purchase any terminals or
services under this contract and may terminate this contract at its convenience.  Sales under the U.S.
Army contract will be subject to unpredictable funding and deployment decisions. Through July 31, 2001
we have received orders for $15.9 million under this contract.

• Certain components that we need have purchasing lead-time of four months or longer, and the U.S.
Army contract requires us to provide mobile terminals within 30 days after we receive an order.

• Our success in commercial markets will depend on, among other things, our ability to access the best
distribution channels, the development of applications which create real value for the customer and our
ability to attract and retain qualified personnel.  Delays in delivering terminals could also adversely affect
our ability to obtain and retain commercial customers.

• In general, as we seek to grow our mobile data communications services business, we anticipate that we
will need to maintain a substantial inventory in order to provide terminals to our customers on a timely
basis.  If forecasted orders are not received, we might be left with large inventories of slow moving or
unusable parts or terminals.  This could result in an adverse effect on our business, results of operations,
liquidity and financial position.

• We will lease the satellite capacity necessary to operate our system from third party satellite networks.
We currently have a long-term lease with a satellite network operator (TMI) for satellite coverage in
North America, Central America and the northern rim of South America. While several vendors have
announced plans for new satellite systems, only one provider, INMARSAT, presently offers the global
coverage that will be required under the U.S. Army contract.  We cannot assure you that we will be able
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to obtain sufficient satellite capacity or geographical coverage from any vendor to operate our mobile data
communications services system on acceptable terms or on a timely basis.

• There are several existing competitors in the mobile data communications market that have established
systems with sizable customer bases and much greater financial resources than us.  The largest of these
competitors is Qualcomm Incorporated. Existing competitors, including terrestrial service providers,  are
also aggressively pricing their products and services and may continue to do so in the future. 
Competitors continue to offer new value added products and services, which we may be unable to match
on a timely or cost effective basis.  Increased competition may impact margins throughout the industry. 
We anticipate that new competitors will enter the mobile data communications market in the future.

• All satellite communications are subject to the risk that a satellite or ground station failure or a natural
disaster may interrupt service.  Interruptions in service could have a material adverse effect on our results
of operations.  With respect to U.S. satellite service, satellite network providers have arranged to provide
back-up satellite and ground station service for each other in the event of catastrophic failure.

• Our mobile terminals will be manufactured by subcontractors, the first of which is SCI Systems, Inc. of
Huntsville, Alabama, a large electronics contract manufacturer.  While we have successfully produced
limited quantities of terminals, we have not yet produced significant quantities of terminals or complete
assemblies (which include computers and palm top input/output devices for user-customized
applications) and we cannot assure you that we will be able to obtain them on a timely or cost-effective
basis.

• We believe that we own or have licensed all intellectual property rights necessary for the operation of our
mobile data communications services business as currently contemplated.  If our terminals or services are
found to infringe on protected technology, we could be required to redesign our terminals, license the
protected technology, and/or pay damages or other compensation to the infringed party.  If we are unable
to license protected technology used in our terminals or if we were required to redesign our terminals, we
could be prohibited from making and selling our terminals or providing mobile data communications
services.

Due to many factors, including the amount of business represented by large contracts, our operating results are
difficult to forecast and may be volatile.

We have experienced, and will experience in the future, significant fluctuations in sales and operating results
from quarter to quarter.  One reason for this is that a significant portion of our business - primarily the over-the-
horizon microwave systems and other products of our telecommunications transmission business segment and a
portion of our RF microwave amplifier business segment - is derived from a limited number of relatively large
customer contracts, the timing of which cannot be predicted.  While we generally recognize income under contracts
when the products are shipped, income is recognized on the percentage-of-completion method when the performance
of a contract will extend beyond a 12-month period.  Our net sales and operating results also may vary significantly
from period to period because of the following factors: product mix sold; fluctuating market demand; price
competition; new product introductions by our competitors; fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates;
unexpected changes in delivery of components or subsystems; political instability; regulatory developments; and
general economic conditions.  Accordingly, you should not rely on period-to-period comparisons as indications of our
future performance because these comparisons may not be meaningful.

Our dependence on international sales may adversely affect us.

Sales for use by international customers (including sales to prime contractors’ international customers)
represented approximately 46.2%, 71.4% and 60.1%, and of our total net sales for the fiscal years ended July 31, 2001,
2000, and 1999, respectively.  Approximately 49.7% of our backlog at July 31, 2001 consisted of orders for use by
foreign customers.  We expect that international sales will continue to be a substantial portion of our total sales.  These
sales expose us to certain risks, including barriers to trade, fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates (which may
make our products less price competitive), political and economic instability, availability of suitable export financing,
tariff regulations, and other U.S. and foreign regulations that may apply to the export of our products and the generally
greater difficulties of doing business abroad.  We attempt to reduce the risk of doing business in foreign countries by
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seeking subcontracts with large system suppliers, contracts denominated in U.S. dollars, advance payments and
irrevocable letters of credit in our favor.

Foreign defense contracts generally contain provisions relating to termination at the convenience of the
government.  In addition, certain of our products and systems may require licenses from U.S. government agencies for
export from the United States, and some of our products are not permitted to be exported.  We cannot be sure of our
ability to gain any licenses that may be required to export our products, and failure to receive required licenses could
materially reduce our ability to sell our products outside the United States.

Our dependence on component availability, subcontractor availability and performance and key suppliers may
adversely affect us.

We do not generally maintain a substantial inventory of components and subsystems.  We obtain certain
components and subsystems from a single source or a limited number of sources, but believe that most components and
subsystems are available from alternative suppliers and subcontractors.  A significant interruption in the delivery of
such items, however, could have a material effect on our business and results of operations.

Our backlog is subject to customer cancellation or modification.

We currently have a backlog of orders, mostly under contracts that the customer may modify or terminate. 
We cannot assure you that our backlog will result in net sales.

Our sales to the U.S. government are subject to funding and other risks.

We sell our products and services to agencies of the U.S. government or to contractors or subcontractors
under contracts with U.S. agencies.  These sales accounted for approximately 23.1%, 8.8% and 15.6% of our total net
sales in fiscal 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.  As a result of our contract with the U.S.Army, we expect sales to
agencies of the U.S. government to increase significantly in the future.  As is customary for government sales, these
sales are subject to various risks.  These risks include the ability of the U.S. government to:

• change government policy which could reduce our business;
• terminate existing contracts for its convenience; and
• audit our contract-related costs and fees, including allocated indirect costs.

A reduction in government agency budgets could cause us to experience declining net sales, increased
pressure on operating margins and, in certain cases, net losses.  The loss or significant cutback of a large program in
which we participate could also materially adversely affect our future results of operations.

All of our U.S. government contracts can be terminated by the U.S. government for its convenience. 
Termination for convenience provisions provide only for our recovery of costs incurred or committed, settlement
expenses and profit on work completed prior to termination.  In addition to the right of the U.S. government to
terminate, U.S. government contracts are conditioned upon the continuing approval by Congress of the necessary
spending.  Congress usually appropriates funds for a given program on a fiscal-year basis even though contract
performance may take more than one year.  Consequently, at the beginning of a major program, the contract is usually
not fully funded, and additional monies are normally committed to the contract only if, as and when appropriations are
made by Congress for future fiscal years.

The U.S. government may review our costs and performance on their contracts, as well as our accounting and
general business practices.  Based on the results of such audits, the U.S. government may adjust our contract-related
costs and fees, including certain financing costs, goodwill, portions of research and development costs, and certain
marketing expenses, may not be reimbursable under U.S. government contracts.

We obtain U.S. government contracts through a competitive bidding process.  We cannot assure you that we
will continue to win competitively awarded contracts or that awarded contracts will generate sufficient net sales to
result in profitability.
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Acquisitions and strategic investments may divert our resources and management attention; results may fall
short of expectations.

We intend to continue pursuing selected acquisitions of and investments in businesses, technologies and
product lines as a key component of our growth strategy.  Any future acquisition or investment may result in the use of
significant amounts of cash, potentially dilutive issuances of equity securities, incurrence of debt and amortization
expenses related to goodwill and other intangible assets.  Acquisitions involve numerous risks, including:

• difficulties in the integration and assimilation of the operations, technologies, products and
personnel of an acquired business;

• diversion of management’s attention from other business concerns; and

• potential loss of key employees or customers of any acquired business.

Our fixed price contracts subject us to risk.

Almost all of our products and services are sold under fixed price contracts.  This means that we bear the risk
of unanticipated technological, manufacturing, supply or other problems,  price increases or increases in the cost of
performance.

Our markets are highly competitive.

The markets for our products are highly competitive.  We cannot assure you that we will be able to
successfully compete or that our competitors will not develop new technologies and products that are more
commercially effective than our own.  We expect the Department of Defense’s increased use of commercial off-the-
shelf products and components in military equipment will encourage new competitors to enter the market.  Also,
although the implementation of advanced telecommunications services is in its early stages in many developing
countries, we believe competition may intensify as businesses and foreign governments realize the market potential of
telecommunications services.  Many of our competitors have financial, technical, marketing, sales and distribution
resources greater than ours.

The loss of key technical or management personnel could adversely affect our business.

Our success depends on the continued contributions of key technical management personnel, including the
key management at each of our subsidiaries.  Many of our key personnel, particularly the key engineers of our
subsidiaries, would be difficult to replace, and are not subject to employment or noncompetition agreements.  The
development of our mobile data communications services business is particularly dependent upon Joel R. Alper, the
President of our Comtech Mobile Datacom Corp. subsidiary.  The success of our telecommunications transmission
segment is particularly dependent upon Richard L. Burt, President of our Comtech Systems, Inc. subsidiary, and
Robert L. McCollum, President of our Comtech EF Data Corp. subsidiary.  Our growth and future success will depend
in large part upon our ability to attract and retain highly qualified engineering, sales and marketing personnel. 
Competition for such personnel from other companies, academic institutions, government entities and other
organizations is intense.  Although we believe that we have been successful to date in recruiting and keeping key
personnel, we may not be successful in attracting and retaining the personnel we will need to continue to grow and
operate profitably.  Also, the management skills that have been appropriate for us in the past may not continue to be
appropriate if we continue to grow and diversify.

Our success also depends to a significant extent upon our President and Chief Executive Officer, Fred
Kornberg.  The loss of the services of Mr. Kornberg could have a material adverse effect on us.  We have entered into
an employment contract with Mr. Kornberg.  We have also purchased key man insurance in the amount of $1.0
million on each of Fred Kornberg, Joel R. Alper, Richard L. Burt and Robert L. McCollum.

Protection of our intellectual property is limited; we are subject to the risk of third party claims of
infringement.

Our businesses rely in large part upon our proprietary scientific and engineering "know-how" and production
techniques.  Historically, patents have not been an important part of our protection of our intellectual property rights. 
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We rely upon the laws of unfair competition, restrictions in licensing agreements and confidentiality agreements to
protect our intellectual property.  We limit access to and distribution of our proprietary information.  These efforts
allow us to rely upon the knowledge and experience of our management and technical personnel to market our existing
products and to develop new products.  The departure of any of our key management and technical personnel, the
breach of their confidentiality and non-disclosure obligations to us or the failure to achieve our intellectual property
objectives may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our ability to compete successfully and achieve future revenue growth will depend, in part, on our ability to
protect our proprietary technology and operate without infringing upon the rights of others.  We may fail to do so.  In
addition, the laws of certain countries in which our products are or may be sold may not protect our products and
intellectual property rights to the same extent as the laws of the United States.

Our operations are subject to environmental regulation.

We are subject to a variety of local, state and federal governmental regulations relating to the storage,
discharge, handling, emission, generation, manufacture and disposal of toxic or other hazardous substances used to
manufacture our products, particularly in the fabrication of fiberglass antennas by our Comtech Antenna Systems, Inc.
subsidiary.  We believe that we are currently in compliance in all material respects with such regulations and that we
have obtained all necessary environmental permits to conduct our business.  Nevertheless, the failure to comply with
current or future regulations could result in the imposition of substantial fines, suspension or production, alteration of
our manufacturing processes or cessation of operations that could materially adversely affect our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

Our stock price is volatile.

The stock market in general, and the stock prices of technology-based companies in particular, have
experienced extreme volatility that often has been unrelated to the operating performance of any specific public
companies.  The market price of our common stock has fluctuated significantly in the past and is likely to fluctuate
significantly in the future as well.  Factors that may have significant impact on the market price of our stock include:

• future announcements concerning us or our competitors;

• receipt or non-receipt of substantial orders for products and services;

• results of technological innovations;

• new commercial products;

• changes in recommendations of securities analysts;

• government regulations;

• proprietary rights or product or patent litigation;

• changes in market conditions generally, particularly in the market for small cap stocks; and

• limited public float.

Shortfalls in our revenues or earnings in any given period relative to the levels expected by securities analysts
could immediately, significantly and adversely affect the trading price of our common stock.

We have never declared or paid dividends.

We have never declared or paid a cash dividend and do not intend to declare any cash dividends on our
common stock in the foreseeable future.
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ITEM 7A.  QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

The Company’s earnings and cash flows are subject to fluctuations due to changes in interest rates primarily
from its investment of available cash balances in money market funds.  Under its current policies, the Company does
not use interest rate derivative instruments to manage exposure to interest rate changes.

ITEM 8.  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Independent Auditors' Report, Consolidated Financial Statements, Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements and related financial schedule are listed in the index to Consolidated Financial Statements and Schedule
annexed hereto.

ITEM 9.  CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON
ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None
PART III

ITEM 10.  DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF REGISTRANT

Certain information concerning the directors and officers of the Company is incorporated by reference to the
Proxy Statement of the Company for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held December 11, 2001 (the "Proxy
Statement") which will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission no more than 120 days after the close
of its fiscal year.

ITEM 11.  EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information regarding executive compensation is incorporated by reference to the Proxy Statement, which
will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission no more than 120 days after the close of its fiscal year.

ITEM 12.  SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL
OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

Information regarding security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management is incorporated by
reference to the  Proxy Statement, which will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission no more than 120
days after the close of its fiscal year.

ITEM 13.  CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

Information regarding certain relationships and related transactions is incorporated by reference to the
Company’s Proxy Statement, which will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission no more than 120
days after the close of its fiscal year.

PART IV

ITEM 14.  EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

(a) Documents filed as part of this report:

1. and 2.  Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedule

The Financial Statements filed as part of this report are listed in the accompanying Index to Consolidated
Financial Statements and Schedule.

(b) In May 2001, and as amended in July 2001, the Company filed a report on Form 8-K with respect to
the acquisition of certain assets and products lines of MPD Technologies, Inc.
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(c) Exhibit index

Exhibit
Number Description of Exhibit

Incorporated By
Reference to Exhibit

3(a) Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant Exhibit 3(a) of the Registrant’s 1987
Form 10-K

3(b) Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation effecting
the 5 to 1 reverse stock split

Exhibit 3(b) to the Registrant’s 1991
Form 10-K

3(c) Amended and restated By-Laws of the Registrant Exhibit 3(c) of Registrant’s 1998
Form 10-K

3(d) Amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation increasing
authorized shares to 12 million

Exhibit 3(d) to the Registrant’s 1994
Form 10-K

3(e) Amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation increasing
the authorized shares to 17 million

Exhibit 3(e) to Registrant’s 1998
Form 10-K

3(f) Form of Certificate of Designation of the Series A Junior
Participating Preferred Stock

Exhibit 4(1) to the Registrant’s Form 8-
A/A dated December 23, 1998

3(g) Amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation increasing
the authorized shares to 32 million

Exhibit 3(g) to Registrant’s 2000 Form 10-K

4(a) Rights Agreement dated as of December 15, 1998 between
the Registrant and American Stock Transfer and Trust
Company, as Rights Agent

Exhibit 4(1) to the Registrant’s Form 8-
A/A dated December 23, 1998

10(a) Amended and restated Employment Agreement dated
October 9, 2001 between the Registrant and Fred
Kornberg

10(b) Lease and amendment thereto on the Melville Facility Exhibit 10(k) to the Registrant’s 1992
Form 10-K

10(c) Amended and restated 1993 Incentive Stock Option Plan Appendix A to the Registrant’s Proxy
Statement dated November 3, 1997

10(d) Time Accelerated Restricted Stock Purchase Agreements
between Registrant and Principals of Comtech Mobile
Datacom Corp. operating unit

Exhibit 10(f) to the Registrant’s 1999
Form 10-K

10(e) Movement Tracking System Contract between Comtech
Mobile Datacom Corp. and U.S. Army’s CECOM
Acquisition Center dated June 24, 1999 (certain portions of
this agreement have been omitted and filed separately with
the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to a
request for confidential treatment)

Exhibit 10(g) to the Registrant’s 1999
Form 10-K

10(f) License Agreement between Vistar Telecommunications
Inc. and Comtech Mobile Datacom Corp. dated August 31,
1999 (certain portions of this agreement have been omitted
and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange
Commission pursuant to a request for confidential
treatment)

Exhibit 10(h) to the Registrant’s 1999
Form 10-K

     10(g)(1) 2000 Stock Incentive Plan Appendix A to the Registrant’s Proxy
Statement dated November 8, 1999

     10(g)(2) Amendment to the 2000 Stock Incentive Plan Appendix A to the Registrant’s Proxy
Statement dated November 6, 2000

10(h) Amended and Restated Asset Purchase Agreement
between the Registrant and Adaptive Broadband
Corporation dated as of July 10, 2000

Exhibit 2.1 to the Registrant’s Form 8-K
dated July 10, 2000

   10(i)(1) Loan and Security Agreement between the Registrant and
The Teachers’ Retirement System of Alabama, The
Employees’ Retirement System of Alabama, The Alabama
Heritage Trust Fund, PEIRAF-Deferred Compensation
Plan and State Employees’ Health Insurance Fund, dated
July 7, 2000

Exhibit 10(k) to the Registrant’s 2000
Form 10-K
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Exhibit
Number Description of Exhibit

Incorporated By
Reference to Exhibit

10(i)(2) Amendment to the Loan and Security Agreement between
the Registrant and The Teachers’ Retirement System of
Alabama, The Employees’ Retirement System of Alabama,
The Alabama Heritage Trust Fund, PEIRAF-Deferred
Compensation Plan and State Employees’ Health
Insurance Fund, dated April 30, 2001

10(j) Asset Purchase Agreement between the Registrant and
MPD Technologies, Inc., dated March 2, 2001

Exhibit 2.1 to the Registrant’s Form 8-K
dated April 30, 2001

10(k) 2001 Employee Stock Purchase Plan Appendix B to the Registrant’s Proxy
Statement dated November 6, 2000

21 Subsidiaries of the Registrant
23 Consent of KPMG LLP

Exhibits to this Annual Report on Form 10-K are available from the Company upon request and payment to the Company for the
cost of reproduction. 
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SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

COMTECH TELECOMMUNICATIONS CORP.

   October 19, 2001       By:  s/ Fred Kornberg                                   
(Date)  Fred Kornberg, Chairman of the Board

 and Chief Executive Officer

 Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by
the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title
October  19, 2001

(Date)
s/ Fred Kornberg
   Fred Kornberg

Chairman of the Board
Chief  Executive Officer
and President
(Principal Executive Officer)

 October 19, 2001
(Date)

s/ Robert G. Rouse
   Robert G. Rouse

Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

October 19, 2001
(Date)

s/ George Bugliarello
   George Bugliarello

Director

October 19, 2001
(Date)

s/ Richard L. Goldberg
   Richard L. Goldberg 

Director

October 19, 2001
(Date)

s/ Edwin Kantor
   Edwin Kantor

Director

October 19, 2001
(Date)

s/ Gerard R. Nocita
   Gerard R. Nocita

Director

October 19, 2001
(Date)

s/ Sol S. Weiner
   Sol S. Weiner

Director
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Exhibit 21
SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the subsidiaries of the Company as of October 19, 2001:

Subsidiary State of Incorporation

Telecommunications Transmission Business Segment
CASI – Comtech Antenna Systems, Inc. Delaware
CEFD – Comtech EF Data Corp. Delaware
CSI – Comtech Systems, Inc. Delaware

RF Microwave Amplifier Business Segment
CPST – Comtech PST Corp. New York

Mobile Data Communications Services Business Segment
CMDC – Comtech Mobile Datacom Corp. Delaware



F-1

COMTECH TELECOMMUNICATIONS CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Index to Consolidated Financial Statements and Schedule

Page

Independent Auditors' Report F-2

Consolidated Financial Statements:

Balance Sheets at July 31, 2001 and 2000 F-3

Statements of Operations for each of the years in the three-year
period ended July 31, 2001 F-4

Statements of Stockholders' Equity for each of the years in the
three-year period ended July 31, 2001 F-5

Statements of Cash Flows for each of the years in the three-year
period ended July 31, 2001 F-6, F-7

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements F-8 to F-25

Additional Financial Information Pursuant to the Requirements of Form 10-K:

Schedule II - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves S-1

Schedules not listed above have been omitted because they are either not applicable or the
required information has been given elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements
or notes thereto.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Comtech Telecommunications Corp.:

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Comtech Telecommunications Corp. and subsidiaries as listed in the
accompanying index.  In connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, we also audited the financial statement
schedule II as listed in the accompanying index.  These consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule are the
responsibility of the Company’s management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and
financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Comtech Telecommunications Corp. and subsidiaries as of July 31, 2001 and 2000, and the results of their operations and their cash
flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended July 31, 2001 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.  Also in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule II, when considered in relation to the basic
consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

KPMG LLP

Melville, New York
October 9, 2001
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COMTECH TELECOMMUNICATIONS CORP.
AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Balance Sheets
July 31, 2001 and 2000

Assets
Current assets:

       2001____         2000___

Cash and cash equivalents $  36,205,000 12,587,000
Marketable investment securities - 18,634,000
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts of $845,000 in 2001     

and $806,000 in 2000 27,374,000 24,204,000
Other receivables - 9,038,000
Inventories, net 36,732,000 26,170,000
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 1,151,000 583,000
Deferred tax asset – current        2,634,000        3,125,000

Total current assets 104,096,000 94,341,000

Property, plant and equipment, net 11,778,000 10,738,000
Goodwill and other intangibles with indefinite lives, net of accumulated 
    amortization of $1,648,000 in 2001 and $246,000 in 2000 17,657,000 10,223,000
Other intangibles with definite lives, net of accumulated amortization of $1,212,000
    in 2001 and $62,000 in 2000 10,162,000 7,446,000
Other assets, net 569,000 468,000
Deferred tax asset – non current        2,726,000        2,815,000

Total assets $  146,988,000     126,031,000

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:

Current installments of long-term debt $     5,900,000 2,100,000
Current installments of capital lease obligations (including payable

to related party of $155,000 in 2001 and $347,000 in 2000) 1,097,000 608,000
  Accounts payable 11,014,000 11,260,000
  Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 13,615,000 13,657,000
  Deferred service revenue 2,073,000 -
  Income tax payable        3,308,000        1,449,000

Total current liabilities 37,007,000 29,074,000
Long-term debt, less current installments 42,000,000 37,900,000
Capital lease obligations, less current installments (including payable

to related party of $154,000 in 2000) 2,157,000 908,000
Other long-term liabilities           259,000           367,000

Total liabilities 81,423,000 68,249,000

Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, par value $.10 per share; shares authorized and

unissued 2,000,000 - -
Common stock, par value $.10 per share; authorized 30,000,000 shares, issued
   7,511,105 shares in 2001 and 7,349,176 shares in 2000 751,000 735,000
Additional paid-in capital 67,490,000 66,740,000
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) -         (113,000)
Accumulated deficit      (1,973,000)      (8,687,000)

66,268,000 58,675,000
Less:

Treasury stock (82,500 shares) (184,000) (184,000)
Deferred compensation         (519,000)         (709,000)

Total stockholders’ equity      
65,565,000

     
57,782,000

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $  146,988,000     126,031,000
Commitments and contingencies

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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      2001           2000           1999     

Net sales $135,931,000 66,444,000     37,886,000
Cost of sales    87,327,000     45,942,000     26,405,000
Gross profit 48,604,000 20,502,000 11,481,000

Expenses:
Selling, general and administrative 22,707,000 12,058,000 6,554,000
Research and development 10,190,000     2,644,000       2,022,000
In-process research and development - 10,218,000 -
Amortization of intangibles      2,552,000          230,000           78,000

   35,449,000     25,150,000      8,654,000
Operating income (loss) from continuing operations 13,155,000 (4,648,000) 2,827,000

Other expenses (income):
Interest expense 4,015,000 381,000 204,000
Interest income (2,303,000) (1,511,000) (65,000)
Other, net         841,000         201,000         (39,000)

Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes 10,602,000 (3,719,000) 2,727,000
Provision (benefit) for income taxes      3,888,000           85,000    (3,754,000)

Income (loss) from continuing operations 6,714,000 (3,804,000) 6,481,000

Discontinued operations (Note 13):
Loss from operations of discontinued segment (net of applicable     

income tax benefit of $79,000 in 2000 and $320,000 in 1999) - (137,000) (622,000)
Loss on disposal of segment, including provision in 1999

of $430,000 for operating losses during phase-out period
(net of applicable income tax benefit of $306,000)                    -                     -       (594,000)

Net income (loss) $    6,714,000    (3,941,000)       5,265,000

Basic income (loss) per share:
Income (loss) from continuing operations  $           0.91 (0.67) 1.56
Loss from discontinued operations                     

-
            (0.02)             (0.29)

Basic income (loss) per share $            0.91             (0.69)               
1.27

Diluted income (loss) per share:
Income (loss) from continuing operations  $           0.85 (0.67) 1.42
Loss from discontinued operations                    -             (0.02)             (0.27)
Diluted income (loss) per share $            0.85             (0.69)               

1.15
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding-

Basic 7,348,000 5,663,000 4,143,000
Potential dilutive common shares        562,000                     -          430,000

Weighted average number of common and common equivalent
shares outstanding assuming dilution –

   Diluted      7,910,000      5,663,000       4,573,000

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity
Years ended July 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999

       Common Stock        Treasury Stock
Shares Amount Additional

Paid-in Capital
Accumulated

Other
Comprehensive

Income

Accumulated
Deficit

Shares Amount Deferred
Compensation

Stockholders’
Equity

Comprehensive
Income

Balance July 31, 1998 4,008,006 $401,000 $22,055,000 $                        - $(10,011,000) 82,500 $(184,000) $(168,000) $12,093,000 $  1,104,000

Amortization of deferred
      compensation - - - - - - - 248,000 248,000 -
Stock issued in acquisition
     of Mobile Datacom 150,000 15,000 513,000 - - - - - 528,000 -
Restricted shares issued
     pursuant to employment
     stock award agreement 225,000 22,000 1,034,000 - - - - (1,041,000) 15,000 -
Stock options exercised 88,362 9,000 199,000 - - - - - 208,000 -
Net income                -                -                   -                  -        5,265,000               -                  -                  -      5,265,000       5,265,000

Balance July 31, 1999 4,471,368 447,000 23,801,000 - (4,746,000) 82,500 (184,000) (961,000) 18,357,000     5,265,000

Amortization of deferred
     compensation - - - - - - - 252,000 252,000 -
Stock issued in acquisition
     of Hill Engineering 30,000 3,000 368,000 - - - - - 371,000 -
Stock options exercised 188,117 18,000 404,000 - - - - - 422,000 -
Unrealized loss on securities
     net of  reclassification
     adjustment - - - (113,000) - - - - (113,000) (113,000)
Warrants exercised 14,691 1,000 (1,000) - - - - - - -
Shares issued in connection
     with public offering 2,645,000 266,000 42,168,000 - - - - - 42,434,000 -
Net loss                -                -                  -                  -      (3,941,000)               

-
                -               - (3,941,000)  (3,941,000)

Balance July 31, 2000 7,349,176 735,000 66,740,000 (113,000) (8,687,000) 82,500 (184,000) (709,000) 57,782,000    (4,054,000)

Amortization of deferred
     compensation - - - - - - - 190,000 190,000 -
Unrealized loss on securities
     net of  reclassification
     adjustment - - - 113,000 - - - - 113,000 113,000
Stock options exercised 97,146 10,000 265,000 - - - - - 275,000 -
Employee stock purchase plan
     shares purchased 14,112 1,000 157,000 - - - - - 158,000 -
Warrants exercised 50,671 5,000 328,000 - - - - - 333,000 -
Net income                  -                  -                   -                  -    6,714,000               

-
                 -                 -      6,714,000      6,714,000

Balance July 31, 2001   7,511,105 $   751,000 $67,490,000 $              - $(1,973,000)    82,500 $(184,000) $(519,000) $ 65,565,000 $   6,827,000

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended July 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999

      2001           2000           1999     
Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income (loss) $          6,714,000  (3,941,000) 5,265,000

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Loss from discontinued operations - 137,000 1,216,000
Loss on sale of marketable investment securities 990,000 88,000 -
Depreciation and amortization 6,575,000 2,149,000 1,510,000
Write-off of in-process research and development - 10,218,000 -
Increase (decrease) in bad debt allowance 39,000 - (25,000)
Provision for inventory reserves 264,000 244,000 341,000
Deferred income tax expense (benefit) 580,000 (1,298,000) (4,575,000)
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects of acquisitions:

Restricted cash securing letter of credit obligations - - 22,000
Accounts receivable (3,059,000) (2,111,000) 1,006,000
Inventories (8,132,000) (4,580,000) (1,724,000)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (568,000) (412,000) 138,000
Other assets (335,000) (293,000) 9,000
Accounts payable (246,000) 3,048,000 372,000
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 227,000     3,059,000       2,181,000
Income tax payable 1,859,000 1,449,000 195,000
Other liabilities           (108,000)          367,000                      -

Net cash provided by continuing operations 4,800,000 8,124,000 5,931,000
Net cash used by discontinued operations                         -       (151,000)        (988,000)
Net cash provided by operating activities           4,800,000       7,973,000        4,943,000

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of marketable investment securities (1,330,000) (37,015,000) -
Proceeds from sale of marketable securities 19,221,000 18,000,000 -
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (2,776,000) (1,185,000)    (1,000,000)

     Purchase of technology license     (563,000) - -
     Payment for business acquisitions, net of cash received        (3,682,000)    (63,138,000)        (173,000)
          Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities         10,870,000    (83,338,000)     (1,173,000)
    
Cash flows from financing activities:

  Borrowings under line of credit facility - 1,000,000 850,000
     Repayments of borrowings under line of credit facility - (1,000,000) (850,000)
     Borrowings under loan agreement 10,000,000 40,000,000 -
     Repayment of borrowings under loan agreement         (2,100,000) - -
     Principal payments on capital lease obligations (718,000) (800,000) (821,000)

  Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net 158,000 42,434,000 -
  Proceeds from exercises of stock options and warrants 608,000 422,000 208,000
  Restricted stock issuances                         -                      

-
           15,000

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities          7,948,000      
82,056,000

       (598,000)

(continued)
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          2001                     2000      
 

            1999       

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents  $    23,618,000 6,691,000 3,172,000

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period       12,587,000        5,896,000       2,724,000

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $    36,205,000      12,587,000       5,896,000

Supplemental cash flow disclosure

Cash paid during the period for:
Interest $      3,898,000          134,000          204,000

   Income taxes          500,000          169,000

Non cash investing and financing activities:

$      1,425,000

Acquisition of property, equipment and technology license
           through capital leases          136,000$      2,456,000          567,000

Capital stock issued in connection with business acquisition                        -           371,000                      -

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

July 31, 2001 and 2000

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting and Reporting Policies

(a) Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Comtech Telecommunications Corp. and
its subsidiaries (the Company), all of which are wholly owned.  All significant intercompany balances and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

(b) Nature of Business

We design, develop, produce and market sophisticated products and systems that are used by telecommunications and
defense systems and service providers in a broad range of applications.

The Company’s business is highly competitive and characterized by rapid technological change.  In addition, the
number of potential customers for the Company’s products is limited.  The Company’s growth and financial
position depends, among other things, on its ability to keep pace with such changes and developments and to
respond to the sophisticated requirements of an increasing variety of electronic equipment users.  Many of the
Company’s competitors are substantially larger, have significantly greater financial, marketing and operating
resources and broader product lines than does the Company.  A significant technological breakthrough by others,
including smaller competitors or new companies, could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business.
 In addition, certain of the Company’s customers have technological capabilities in the Company’s product areas
and could choose to replace the Company’s products with their own.

International sales expose the Company to certain risks, including barriers to trade, fluctuations in foreign currency
exchange rates (which may make the Company’s products less price competitive), political and economic
instability, availability of suitable export financing, export license requirements, tariff regulations, and other
United States and foreign regulations that may apply to the export of the Company’s products, as well as the
generally greater difficulties of doing business abroad.  The Company attempts to reduce the risk of doing business
in foreign countries by seeking contracts denominated in U.S. dollars, advance payments and irrevocable letters of
credit in its favor.

(c) Revenue Recognition

Revenues on long-term, fixed price contracts are generally recorded based on the relationship of total costs incurred to
date to total projected final costs or, alternatively, as deliveries are made.

Revenues on other contract orders are recognized under the units of delivery method.  Under this method, revenues are
recorded as units are delivered with the related cost of sales recognized on each shipment based upon a percentage
of estimated final contract costs.  Contract costs include material, direct labor, manufacturing overhead and other
direct costs.  Retainages and estimated earnings in excess of amounts billed on certain multi-year programs are
reported as unbilled receivables.

Revenue not associated with long-term contracts is recognized when the earnings process is complete, generally upon
shipment or customer acceptance.

Provision for anticipated losses on uncompleted contracts is made in the period in which such losses are determined.
(Continued)
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(d) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid money market funds with a maturity at acquisition of three months or less. 
Cash equivalents at July 31, 2001 and 2000 amounted to $27,412,000 and $4,779,000, respectively. These
investments are carried at cost plus accrued interest, which approximates market.

(e) Statement of Cash Flows

The Company acquired equipment and a technology license financed by capital leases in the amounts of $2,456,000,
$567,000 and $136,000 in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

(f) Marketable Investment Securities

Marketable investment securities at July 31, 2000 consisted of a mutual fund investment classified as available-for-sale
and recorded at fair value.  Such investment securities were sold in fiscal 2001.  Unrealized holding gains and
losses, net of the related tax effect on these available-for-sale securities, are excluded from earnings and are
reported as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income until realized.  Realized gains and losses
from the sale of available-for-sale securities are determined on a specific identification basis.

(g) Inventories

Work-in-process inventory reflects all accumulated production costs, which are comprised of direct production costs
and overhead, reduced by amounts attributable to units delivered.  These inventories are reduced to their estimated
net realizable value by a charge to cost of sales in the period such excess costs are determined.

Raw materials and components and work-in-process inventory are stated at the lower of cost or market, computed on
the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method.

(h) Long-Lived Assets

The Company's plant and equipment, which are recorded at cost, are depreciated or amortized over their estimated
useful lives (building and improvements - 40 years, equipment - three to eight years) under the straight-line
method. Capitalized values of properties under leases are amortized over the life of the lease or the estimated life
of the asset, whichever is less.  Intangible assets, consisting of goodwill and other intangible assets resulting from
acquisitions, are being amortized over their respective lives.  See note 15 for information regarding the impact of
recent accounting pronouncements on the amortization of intangibles in future periods. The Company reviews its
long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset
may not be recoverable. If the sum of the expected cash flows undiscounted and without interest, is less than the
carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognized as the amount by which the carrying amount of the
asset exceeds its fair value.

(i) Other Assets

Included in other assets at July 31, 2001 and 2000 is approximately $350,000, less accumulated amortization, which
relates to an intellectual property rights agreement being amortized over the eight-year term of the agreement.  At
July 31, 2001 and 2000, accumulated amortization related to this purchased technology was approximately
$321,000 and $277,000 respectively. 
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(j) Research and  Development Costs

The Company charges research and development costs to operations as incurred, except in those cases in which such
costs are reimbursable under customer-funded contracts.  In fiscal 2001, 2000 and 1999, the Company was
reimbursed by customers for such activities in the amount of $1,656,000, $4,272,000 and $1,779,000 respectively.

(k) Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method.  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized
for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of
existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in
the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled.  The effect on deferred tax
assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment
date.

(l)Earnings Per Share

The Company calculates earnings per share (“EPS”) in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(“SFAS”) No. 128, “Earnings per Share”.  Basic EPS is computed based on the weighted average number of
shares outstanding.  Diluted EPS reflects the dilution from potential common stock issuable pursuant to the
exercise of stock options and warrants, if dilutive, outstanding during each period.  All share and per share
amounts have been restated to reflect a three-for-two stock split effective July 30, 1999 (Note 10(f)).

(m) Financial Instruments

Management of the Company believes that the book value of its monetary assets and liabilities approximates fair value
as a result of the short-term nature of such assets and liabilities.  Management further believes that the fair
market value of its long-term debt and capital lease obligations does not differ materially from its carrying value.

(n) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of
assets and liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported period.  Actual results may differ from those
estimates.

(o) Reclassifications
     

Certain reclassifications have been made to the fiscal 2000 consolidated financial statements to conform to the 2001
presentation.

(p) Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation

The Company records compensation expense for employee stock options only if the current market price of the
underlying stock exceeds the exercise price on the date of the grant.  The Company has elected not to implement
the fair value based accounting method for employee stock options of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation”, but has elected to disclose the pro forma net income per share for employee stock option
grants made beginning in fiscal 1996 as if such method had been used to account for stock-based compensation
cost as described in SFAS No. 123.
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(q)  Comprehensive Income

The Company has adopted SFAS No. 130, “Reporting Comprehensive Income,” which requires companies to report
all changes in equity during a period, except those resulting from investment by owners and distribution to
owners, for the period in which they are recognized.  Comprehensive income is the total of net income and all
other non-owner changes in equity (or other comprehensive income) such as unrealized gains/losses on securities
classified as available-for-sale, foreign currency translation adjustments and minimum pension liability
adjustments.

 (2) Acquisitions

In the first quarter of fiscal 1999, the Company formed two subsidiaries, Comtech Mobile Datacom Corp. (“CMDC”) and
Comtech Wireless, Inc. (“CWI”) to acquire the assets and assume certain liabilities of two businesses.  The purchase
price of the business acquired by CMDC amounted to  $628,000 consisting of cash of $100,000, 150,000 shares of
restricted common stock, valued at $528,000, and warrants to purchase 150,000 shares of common stock at an exercise
price of $6.57 per share.  The purchase price of the business acquired by CWI amounted to $350,000 consisting of
$100,000 of cash and a non-recourse note payable of $250,000. The assets acquired were inventories and equipment.
Both acquisitions were accounted for as purchases whereby the assets and liabilities of the businesses acquired were
consolidated with those of the Company from their respective acquisition dates.  The excess of the purchase price over
the fair value of the net assets of the business acquired by CMDC approximated $1,701,000 and is being amortized over a
20-year period.  This amount, net of amortization, is included in goodwill and other intangibles with indefinite lives in
the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.  Effective July 31, 1999, the operations of the business acquired by CWI
were discontinued (see Note 13).  The pro forma effect of the acquisition of CMDC was not material to the results of
operations for the year ended July 31, 1999.

In January 2000, the Company acquired certain assets and assumed certain liabilities of Hill Engineering Inc. (“Hill”) in
exchange for 50,000 shares of the Company’s common stock.  Such shares were issued and placed in escrow and will be
released to the sellers as follows:  (i) 30,000 shares on January 21, 2001 assuming the resolution of certain pending
claims; (ii) 10,000 shares on January 31, 2001 assuming Hill meets certain profit goals; and (iii) 10,000 shares on
January 31, 2002 also assuming Hill meets certain profit goals.  To the extent that Hill does not meet cumulative profit
goals by January 31, 2005, the 20,000 escrow shares will be returned to the Company.  The acquisition has been
accounted for as a purchase.  The purchase price amounted to approximately $371,000, which principally represents the
fair value of the initial 30,000 shares of common stock to be issued to Hill.  The remaining 20,000 shares will be
recorded at fair value on the date when the profit goals are met.  This business operates in the RF microwave amplifiers
segment.  The accompanying consolidated financial statements reflect this acquisition at the fair value of the assets
acquired ($652,000) and liabilities assumed ($871,000) and include the operations of Hill from the date of acquisition
through July 31, 2000.  The excess of the purchase price over the net assets acquired of approximately $606,000 is
included in goodwill and other intangibles with indefinite lives in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet and is
being amortized over a 15 year period.  The operations of Hill are not material to the operations of the Company.  Pro
forma results of operations were not provided as their effect on the consolidated operations was not material. 

In July 2000, the Company acquired the business of EF Data, the satellite communications division of Adaptive Broadband
Corporation, at an adjusted cost of $54,158,000.  The preliminary cash purchase price of $61,500,000 was partially
financed with $40 million supplied through institutional secured borrowings.  Direct acquisition costs amounted to
$1,696,000.  Based upon the acquisition agreement, an adjustment to the purchase price in the amount of $9,038,000 was
due the Company, which is included in the consolidated balance sheet in other receivables as of July 31, 2000 (this
amount was received by the Company in September 2000).  The acquisition was accounted for under the purchase method
of accounting.  The cost of the acquisition has been allocated to the assets and the liabilities assumed based on their
estimated fair values at the date of the acquisition.  The purchase price allocation reflects $930,000 of adjustments for pre-
acquisition contingencies recorded in fiscal 2001.  The excess of the cost over the fair value of the net assets acquired
amounted to approximately $26,818,000, of which $10,218,000 was allocated to in-process research and development and
was expensed
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as of the acquisition date, $7,508,000 was recorded as purchased technology which is being amortized over seven
years, $3,577,000 was recorded as other purchased intangibles which are being amortized over five to seven years and
$5,515,000 has been recorded as goodwill, which is being amortized over ten years.  The in-process research and
development charge is included in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations for the year ended July 31,
2000.  The acquisition cost was allocated as follows (in thousands):

Historical book value of net assets acquired $    27,340
Adjustments to record assets and liabilities at fair value:
    Fair value of in-process research and development costs 10,218
    Fair value of existing technology 7,508
    Fair value of assembled workforce 2,835
    Fair value of customer base 742
    Excess of the purchase price over the fair value of  net assets         5,515
   $    54,158

An independent third-party appraiser was used to assess and value the purchased in-process research and development, existing
technology, assembled workforce and customer base from the acquisition.  The valuation of existing technology and in-process
research and development was determined for products under development, based upon the estimated future revenues to be
earned upon commercialization of the products.  The percentage of the cash flows allocated to the purchased in-process research
and development was derived from the estimated percentage complete for each of the projects.  These cash flows were
discounted back to their net present value.  The resulting projected net cash flows from such projects reflects management’s
estimates of revenues and operating profits related to such projects.  The workforce and customer base valuation was based upon
replacement cost. 

The operating results of EF Data have been included in the consolidated statements of operations from the acquisition date
(July 10, 2000).  The Company’s unaudited pro forma results for fiscal years 1999 and 2000 assuming the merger
occurred on August 1, 1998 and August 1, 1999 are as follows:

(in thousands, except  per share amounts)
   1999   2000

Net revenues $       120,258 153,479
Net income (loss) (8,941) 187
Basic income (loss) per share (2.16) 0.03
Diluted income (loss) per share (2.16) 0.03
Weighted average shares 4,143 5,663
Weighted average shares assuming dilution 4,143 6,280

These unaudited pro forma results have been prepared for comparative purposes only and do not purport to be indicative of the results
of operations that actually would have resulted had the merger been in effect August 1, 1998 and August 1, 1999, or the future
results of operations.

In April 2001, we acquired certain assets and product lines of MPD Technologies, Inc. for $12.7 million, including
transaction costs of $.8 million.  The acquisition was accounted for under the purchase method of accounting.  
Accordingly, we have recorded the assets purchased and the liabilities assumed based upon the estimated fair values at
the date of acquisition.  The excess of the purchase price over the fair values of the net assets acquired was
approximately $9.7 million of which $1.8 million has been allocated to customer base which is being amortized over
eight years, $1.8 million has been allocated to existing technology which is being amortized over six years and $6.1
million has been allocated to goodwill which is being amortized over 20 years.  The purchase price of $12.7 million was
financed through $10 million
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of institutional secured borrowings and the balance from internal company funds.  The acquisition cost was allocated as
follows (in thousands):

Historical book value of net assets acquired $          2,927
Adjustments to record assets and liabilities at fair value
   Fair value of existing technology 1,800
   Fair value of customer base 1,800
   Excess of the purchase price over the fair value of
       net assets             6,124

$        12,651

An independent third-party appraiser was used to assess and value the existing technology and customer base from the acquisition.  
The valuation of existing technology was determined for products  acquired, based upon the estimated future revenues to be earned 
from the products.   The customer base valuation was based upon replacement cost.

The operating results of MPD Technologies have been included in the consolidated statements of operations from the
acquisition date (April 30, 2001) through July 31, 2001.  The Company’s unaudited pro forma results for fiscal years 2000
and 2001 assuming the merger occurred on August 1, 1999 and August 1, 2000 are as follows:

(in thousands, except per share amounts)
2000 2001

Net revenues   $       88,848 153,485
Net income (loss) (6,117) 7,104
Basic income (loss) per share (1.08) 0.97
Diluted income (loss) per share (1.08) 0.90
Weighted average  shares 5,663 7,348
Weighted average shares assuming dilution 5,663 7,910

These unaudited pro forma results have been prepared for comparative purposes only and do not purport to be indicative of the
results of operations that actually would have resulted had the merger been in effect August 1, 1999 and August 1, 2000, or
the future results of operations.

See note 15 for information regarding the impact of recent accounting pronouncements on the amortization of intangibles in 
future periods.

(3) Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consist of the following at July 31, 2001 and 2000:

               2001                2000
Accounts receivable from commercial customers $   18,336,000 19,841,000
Unbilled receivables (including retainages) on contracts-in-progress 5,939,000 2,602,000
Amounts receivable from the United States government and its agencies        3,944,000        2,567,000

28,219,000 25,010,000
Less allowance for doubtful accounts           845,000           806,000

            Accounts receivable, net $   27,374,000      24,204,000

In the opinion of management, substantially all of the unbilled balances will be billed and collected during fiscal 2002.
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(4) Inventories

Inventories consist of the following at July 31, 2001 and 2000:
              2001                2000

Raw materials and components $  18,718,000 14,814,000
Work-in-process and finished goods     20,294,000      14,265,000

39,012,000 29,079,000
Less:
      Progress payments - 380,000
      Reserve for anticipated losses on contracts and inventory reserves       2,280,000        2,529,000

          Inventories, net $ 36,732,000      26,170,000

(5) Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment consists of the following at July 31, 2001 and 2000:
               2001                2000

Equipment $   22,681,000 18,958,000
Leasehold improvements 1,964,000 1,674,000
Facilities financed by capital lease 2,450,000 3,365,000
Equipment financed by capital lease        2,146,000        1,569,000

29,241,000 25,566,000
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization      17,463,000      14,828,000

$   11,778,000      10,738,000

Depreciation and amortization expense on property, plant and equipment amounted to approximately $3,711,000,
$1,562,000, and $1,152,000, for the years ended July 31, 2001,  2000, and 1999 respectively.

(6) Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities consist of the following at July 31, 2001 and 2000:
               2001                

2000
Customer advances and deposits $     2,089,000 1,346,000
Accrued wages and benefits 3,663,000 3,970,000
Accrued commissions 1,021,000 3,992,000
Accrued warranty 4,336,000 2,314,000
Other        2,506,000        2,035,000

$   13,615,000      13,657,000

(7) Capital Lease Obligations

      Capital lease obligations consist of the following at July 31, 2001 and 2000:
               2001                2000

Obligations under capital leases $     3,254,000
          

1,516,000

Less current installments        1,097,000           608,000

$     2,157,000           908,000
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The obligations under capital leases relate to the Melville, New York facilities, as well as certain equipment, the net
carrying value of which was $3,789,000, and $2,106,000  at July 31,2001 and 2000, respectively.

Future minimum lease payments under capital leases as of July 31, 2001 are:

Years ending July 31,
2002 $    1,322,000
2003   1,133,000
2004 916,000
2005 207,000
2006 112,000

Thereafter              6,000

Total minimum lease payments 3,696,000

Less amounts representing          
     interest (at rates varying        
       from 6.55% to 9.0%)          442,000

3,254,000
Less current installments       1,097,000

Obligations under capital leases, 
     net of current installments $    2,157,000

In December 1991, the Company and a partnership controlled by the Company's Chairman, Chief Executive Officer
and President entered into an agreement in which the Company leases from the partnership its corporate
headquarters and Melville production facility.  The lease is for a ten-year period and provides for annual rentals of
approximately $468,000 for fiscal 2001, subject to annual adjustments equal to the lesser of 5% or the change in
the Consumer Price Index.  For financial reporting purposes, the Company has capitalized this lease at inception
in the amount of $2,450,000, net of deferred interest of $1,345,000.  The outstanding balance at July 31, 2001 and
2000 approximated  $155,000 and $501,000, respectively.  The Company exercised its option to extend the lease
for an additional ten-year period during fiscal 2001.

(8) Long-term Debt

In July of 2000, in connection with the acquisition of EF Data, the Company entered into a secured loan agreement
with The Teachers’ Retirement System of Alabama, The Employees’ Retirement System of Alabama, the Alabama
Heritage Trust Fund, PEIRAF-Deferred Compensation Plan, and State Employees’ Health Insurance Fund which
provided a term loan in the amount of $40,000,000, expiring on June 30, 2005.  Costs incurred to obtain the
financing amounted to $289,000 and are included in other assets net of amortization in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheet.  Borrowings under the term loan are evidenced by promissory notes and are secured by
all of the Company’s assets.  The principal amount of the loan outstanding bears interest at the per annum rate of
9.25%. The loan agreement contains restrictive covenants, which, among other things, requires the Company to
maintain certain financial ratios.  At July 31, 2001, the Company was in compliance with such covenants. In
August 2001, the Company made a partial principal prepayment of $19.2 million against the loans.

In April 2001, in connection with the acquisition of MPD Technologies, the Company borrowed an additional $10,000,000
from The Teachers’ Retirement System of Alabama, The Employees’ Retirement Systems of Alabama and PEIRAF-
Deferred Compensation Plan.  Costs incurred to obtain the financing amounted to $164,000 and are included in other
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assets net of amortization in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.  The loan which is evidenced by promissory
notes and is secured by all of the Company’s assets, bears interest on the principal amount outstanding at the per annum
rate of 8.50%.  The loan requires interest only payments through June 2005 at which time the entire principal is due.

Future minimum debt payments as of July 31, 2001 are:

Years ended July 31,
2002 $             5,900,000
2003 9,550,000
2004 13,600,000
2005              18,850,000

Total minimum debt payments 47,900,000
Less current installments                5,900,000

Long-term debt, less current
installments $           42,000,000

(9) Income Taxes

The provision (benefit) for income taxes on continuing operations included in the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations consists of the following:

Year ended July 31,
2001 2000 1999

Federal – current  $          2,834,000 1,004,000 60,000
Federal – deferred 503,000 (1,204,000) (3,949,000)

State and local – current 474,000               446,000               135,000
State and local-deferred                  

77,000
         (161,000)                          

-
$           3,888,000               85,000         

(3,754,000)

The provision (benefit) for income taxes on income from continuing operations was $3,888,000, $85,000, and
($3,754,000) for fiscal 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively, and differed from the amounts computed by applying
the U.S. Federal income tax rate of 34% as a result of the following:

2001 2000 1999
Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate

Computed “expected” tax expense $    3,605,000 34.0% (1,338,000) (34.0)% 927,000 34.0%
Increase (reduction) in income taxes
Resulting from:

Change in the beginning of the year
   valuation allowance for deferred
    tax assets (300,000) (2.8) 1,623,000 41.2 (4,544,000) (166.6)
Utilization of tax benefit

         carryforward - - - - (223,000) (8.2)
State and local income tax, net of     

         federal benefit 363,000 3.4 188,000 4.8 86,000 3.2
Other         220,000      2.1   (388,000)          (9.8)                   -                 -

 $   3,888,000 36.7%        85,000          2.2%  (3,754,000)    (137.6)%
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The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and liabilities at
       July 31, 2001 and 2000 are presented below. 

2001 2000
Deferred tax assets:

Allowance for doubtful accounts receivable $            
98,000

94,000

Intangibles 4,796,000 4,351,000
Inventory and warranty reserves 1,303,000 1,136,000
Plant and equipment, principally due to capitalized

leases and differences in depreciation 481,000 628,000
Compensation and commissions, principally due to accrual

for financial reporting purposes 423,000 1,895,000
Deferred compensation 116,000 236,000
Other             

243,000
                       

-
Total gross deferred tax assets  7,460,000 8,340,000

Less valuation allowance        (2,100,000)       (2,400,000)
Net deferred tax assets $       5,360,000 $       5,940,000

The Company provides for income taxes under the provisions of SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes”. 
SFAS 109 requires an asset and liability based approach in accounting for income taxes. In assessing the
realizability of deferred tax assets and liabilities, management considers whether it is more likely than not that
some portion or all of them will not be realized.  During fiscal 1999, the Company concluded that a full valuation
allowance was no longer necessary given its estimates of future earnings.  Accordingly, the Company reduced the
valuation allowance by $4,544,000 during fiscal 1999.  As of July 31, 2000 and 2001, the Company’s gross
deferred tax asset has been offset by a valuation allowance related to the extended write off period of in-process
research and development from the acquisition of EF Data.  The Company must generate approximately
$19,500,000 of taxable income to fully utilize its deferred tax assets.  Management believes it is more likely than
not that the results of future operations will generate sufficient taxable income to realize the net deferred tax
assets.

 (10)   Stockholders' Equity

(a) Common Stock Offering

In February and March 2000, the Company sold an aggregate of 2,645,000 shares of its common stock in a public offering
resulting in net proceeds to the Company of approximately $42.4 million.

(b)   Stock Option, Stock Purchase and Warrant Agreements

The Company has stock option and stock purchase plans and warrant agreements as follows:

1993 Incentive Stock Option Plan - The 1993 Incentive Stock Option Plan, as amended, provides for the granting to
key employees and officers of incentive and non-qualified stock options to purchase up to 1,042,500 shares of the
Company’s common stock at prices generally not less than the fair market value at the date of grant with the
exception of anyone who, prior to the grant, owns more than 10% of the voting power, the exercise price cannot
be less than 110% of the fair market value.  In addition, it provided formula grants to non-employee members of
the
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Board of Directors.  The term of the options may be no more than ten years. However, for incentive stock options
granted to any employee who, prior to the granting of the option, owns stock representing more than 10% of the
voting power, the option term may be no more than five years. As of July 31, 2001, the Company had granted
incentive stock options representing the right to purchase an aggregate of 1,086,515 shares at prices ranging
between $1.50 - $11.94 per share, of which 115,268 options were canceled and 627,328 are outstanding at
July 31, 2001.  To date, 343,919 shares have been exercised.  Outstanding awards have been transferred to the
2000 Stock Incentive Plan.  The terms applicable to these awards prior to the transfer continue to apply.  The
plan was terminated by the Board of Directors in December 1999 due to the approval by the shareholders of the
2000 Stock Incentive Plan.

2000 Stock Incentive Plan-  The 2000 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended, provides for the granting to all employees
and consultants of the Company (including prospective employees and consultants) non-qualified stock options,
stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, performance shares, performance units and other stock-based awards. 
In addition, employees of the Company are eligible to be granted incentive stock options.  Non-employee
directors of the Company are eligible to receive non-discretionary grants of nonqualified stock options subject to
certain limitations.  The aggregate number of shares of common stock which may be issued may not exceed
850,000 plus the shares that were transferred to the Plan relating to outstanding awards that were previously
granted under the 1982 Incentive Stock Option Plan and the 1993 Incentive Stock Option Plan.  The Stock
Option Committee of the Board of Directors, consistent with the terms of the Plan, will determine the types of
awards to be granted, the terms and conditions of each award and the number of shares of common stock to be
covered by each award.  Grants of incentive and non-qualified stock options may not have a term exceeding ten
years or no more than five years in the case of an incentive stock option granted to a stockholder who owns stock
representing more than 10% of the voting power.  As of July 31, 2001, the Company had granted incentive stock
options representing the right to purchase an aggregate of 486,700 shares at prices ranging between $11.25 -
$17.84 of which 16,000 options were canceled and 470,700 are outstanding at July 31, 2001.  There have been no
exercises.  All options granted have been incentive stock options at prices equal to the fair market value of the
stock on the date of grant.

Warrants Issued Pursuant to Acquisition of CMDC - As part of the asset purchase agreement for the acquisition of
CMDC (see Note 2), the Company issued warrants to the owners and creditors to purchase 150,000 shares of the
Company’s common stock at an exercise price of $6.57.  The warrants, which contain transferability restrictions,
are exercisable for a period of five years commencing September 24, 1998, and shares purchased through the
exercise of these warrants contain voting restrictions. Through fiscal 2001, warrants to purchase 80,671 shares
were exercised.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan – The Comtech Telecommunications Corp. 2001 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“The
Purchase Plan”) was approved by the shareholders on December 12, 2000.  Pursuant to the Purchase Plan,
300,000 shares of the Company’s common stock will be reserved for issuance.   The Purchase Plan is intended to
provide eligible employees of the Company the opportunity to acquire common stock in the Company at 85% of
fair market value at date of issuance through participation in the payroll-deduction based employee stock purchase
plan.  During the year end July 31, 2001, the Company issued 14,112 shares of its common stock to participating
employees in connection with the Purchase Plan.
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c) Option  Activity

The following table sets forth summarized information concerning the Company's stock options:

Number
of

                    shares

Weighted
average exercise

                    price

Outstanding at July 31, 1998 858,195 $                     
2.65

Granted 140,250 6.08
Expired/canceled (5,688) 5.90
Exercised                 (88,362)                        

2.43

Outstanding at July 31, 1999                 904,395                      3.40
Granted 109,500 12.02
Expired/canceled (40,268) 5.69
Exercised               (189,949)                        

2.71

Outstanding at July 31, 2000                 783,678                        
4.65

Granted 434,700 12.62
Expired/canceled (21,400) 9.05
Exercised                 (98,950)                        

3.13
Outstanding at July 31, 2001               1,098,028 $                     

7.86

Options exercisable
    July 31, 2001 354,948 $                     4.07

Options available for
    grant at July 31, 2001 442,910

The options outstanding as of July 31, 2001 are summarized in ranges as follows:

Range of
exercise price

Weighted
average

 Exercise price

Number of
Options

outstanding

Weighted
average

remaining life
$        1.50-3.99 $              

2.96
466,578 6 years

4.00-7.50 6.44 117,750 7 years
7.51-12.00 11.22 292,700 9 years

12.01-17.84 14.50 221,000 9 years

(d) Stock-Based Compensation Plans

The Company accounts for its stock option plans under APB Opinion No. 25, under which no compensation cost has
been recognized.  Had compensation cost for these plans been determined consistent with SFAS No. 123, the
Company’s net income (loss) and income (loss) per share would have been reduced to the following pro forma
amounts:
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                     2001                            
2000

                    1999

Net income (loss) As reported  $           
6,714,000

                (3,941,000) 5,265,000

Pro forma  $           5,818,000                 (4,617,000) 4,836,000
Net income (loss) 
per share As reported    Basic

                       Diluted
 $                    0.91
 $                    0.85

                        (0.69)
                        (0.69)

1.27
                    1.15

Pro forma       Basic
                       Diluted

 $                    
0.79  $                  

  0.74

(0.82)
                     (0.82)

1.17
1.06

The per share weighted-average fair value of stock options granted during 2001, 2000 and 1999 was $9.07, $9.14 and
$3.19, respectively, on the date of grant using the Black Scholes option-pricing model with the following
weighted-average assumptions:

2001 – expected dividend yield of 0%, risk-free interest rate of 5.16%, expected volatility of 72.94% and an expected
option life of 10 years.

2000 – expected dividend yield of 0%, risk-free interest rate of 6.04%, expected volatility of 82.74% and an expected
option life of 10 years.

1999 - expected dividend yield of 0%, risk-free interest rate of 5.86%, expected volatility of 69.5% and an expected
option life of 10 years.

(e) Restricted Common Stock

In February 1994, a total of 180,000 (after effect of three-for-two stock split - see Note 10 (f)) restricted shares of the
Company's common stock were granted by the Board of Directors to the principal officers of one of the
Company's operating units, Comtech Communications Corp, (“CCC”), at a cost of $.10 per share.  The award
relates to services to be provided over future years and, as a result, the stock awards are subject to certain
restrictions which may be removed earlier upon CCC attaining certain business plan milestones, as provided in
the agreement, but no later than ten years from the date of the award.  The excess of market value over cost of the
shares awarded of $633,000 was recorded as deferred compensation and is being amortized to expense over a ten-
year period subject to the aforementioned accelerated provisions, if appropriate, as evaluated on an annual basis. 
The deferred compensation was reflected as a reduction of stockholders’ equity in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheet. In July 2000, the Company combined the operations of CCC with Comtech EF Data Corp. and the
principal officers of CCC were made principal officers of the combined companies. The remaining unamortized
balance of $136,000 of deferred compensation was expensed in fiscal 2000.

In October 1998, a total of 225,000 (after effect of three-for-two stock split - see Note 10(f)) restricted shares of the
Companys’ common stock were granted by the Board of Directors to the principal officers and employees of the
Companys’ new subsidiary, Comtech Mobile Datacom Corp. (“CMDC”), at a cost of $.10 per share.  The award
relates to services to be provided over future years and, as a result, the stock awards are subject to certain
restrictions which may be removed earlier upon CMDC attaining certain business plan milestones, as provided in
the agreement, but no later than ten years from the date of the award.  These awards also automatically vest upon
the employees’ retirement or termination of employment by the Company without cause.  The excess of market
value over cost of the shares awarded of $1,041,000 was recorded as deferred compensation and is being
amortized to expense over a ten-year period subject to the aforementioned accelerated provisions, if appropriate,
as evaluated on an annual basis.  The deferred compensation is reflected as a reduction of stockholders’ equity in
the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
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(f) Stock Split

On July 6, 1999, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized a three-for-two stock split effected in the form of a
50% stock dividend payable July 30, 1999 to stockholders of record on July 16, 1999.  All share and per share
amounts in the accompanying consolidated financial statements have been restated to reflect the stock split.

(11) Segment and Principal Customer Information

Effective July 31, 1999, the Company adopted SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and
Related Information.”  Reportable operating segments are determined based on the Company’s management
approach.  The management approach, as defined by SFAS No. 131, is based on the way that the chief operating
decision-maker organizes the segments within an enterprise for making operating decisions and assessing
performance.  While the Company’s results of operations are primarily reviewed on a consolidated basis, the chief
operating decision-maker also manages the enterprise in three segments: 
(i) Telecommunications Transmission, (ii) RF Microwave Amplifiers and (iii) Mobile Data Communications
Services. Telecommunications Transmission products include modems, frequency converters, satellite VSAT
transceivers and antennas and over-the-horizon microwave communications products and systems.  RF Microwave
Amplifier products include high-power amplifier products that use the microwave and radio frequency spectrums. 
Mobile Data Communications Services include two-way messaging links between mobile platforms or remote sites
and user headquarters using satellite, terrestrial microwave or Internet links.  Unallocated assets consist principally
of cash, deferred tax assets and intercompany receivables.  Unallocated losses result from such corporate expenses
as legal, accounting and executive.  Sales between segments were negligible. 

(in thousands)

Fiscal 2001 Telecommunications
Transmission

RF Microwave
Amplifiers

Mobile Data
Communications

Services
Un-

Allocated Total
Net sales $                   

106,348
16,385 13,198 - 135,931

Operating income (loss) 17,051 (470) (191) (3,235) 13,155
Interest income 211 8 4 2,080 2,303
Interest expense 3,728 287 - - 4,015
Depreciation and           
     amortization 4,995 1,159 229 192 6,575
Expenditure for
      long-lived assets,
      including intangibles 4,506 11,895 142 128 16,671
Total assets 64,116 25,067 16,596 41,209 146,988

Fiscal 2000 Telecommunications
Transmission

RF Microwave
Amplifiers

Mobile Data
Communications

Services
Un-

Allocated Total
Net sales $                     

53,311
10,968 2,165 - 66,444

Operating income (loss) 254 52 (2,350) (2,604) (4,648)
Interest income - - - 1,511 1,511
Interest expense 282 99 - - 381
Depreciation and         
       amortization 974 763 159 253 2,149

Continued
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Fiscal 2000
Telecommunications

Transmission
RF Microwave

Amplifiers

Mobile Data
Communications

Services
Un-

Allocated Total
Expenditure for
   long-lived assets,
   including intangibles 27,166 1,356 286 5 28,813
Total assets 68,018 9,693 4,286 44,034 126,031

Fiscal 1999
Telecommunications

Transmission
RF Microwave

Amplifiers

Mobile Data
Communications

Services
Un-

Allocated Total
Net sales $                     

23,045
14,523   318 - 37,886

Operating income (loss)        2,296   2,503 (309) (1,663)   2,827
Interest income            10 - -        55       65
Interest expense           38      152     11          3     204

Depreciation and         
       amortization          461      714     87       248   1,510
Expenditure for
      long-lived assets          791       326 1,734           3   2,854
Total assets     16,907    8,409  2,691 1,840 29,847

 

Sales to one customer in fiscal 2000 and 1999 represented 43.1% and 27.0%, respectively, of total net sales.  Such
sales were made from the telecommunications transmission business segment.  No customer represented more
than 10% of sales in fiscal  2001. During fiscal 2001, 2000 and 1999, approximately 23.1%, 8.8% and 15.6%,
respectively, of the Company's net sales resulted from contracts with the United States government and its
agencies.  Export sales comprised 46.2%, 71.4% and 60.1% of net sales in fiscal 2001, 2000 and 1999,
respectively.  Export sales include sales to domestic companies for inclusion in products, which will be sold to
international customers.

(12) Commitments and Contingencies

(a) Operating Leases

The Company is obligated under noncancellable operating lease agreements.  At July 31, 2001, the future minimum
lease payments under operating leases are as follows:

2002 $         3,083,000
2003 3,276,000
2004 3,182,000
2005       2,884,000
2006 1,498,000
Thereafter            2,997,000
Total $       16,920,000

Lease expense charged to operations was $2,236,000, $474,000 and  $301,000 in fiscal 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.
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(b) United States Government Contracts

Certain of the Company's contracts are subject to audit by applicable governmental agencies.  Until such audits are
completed, the ultimate profit on these contracts cannot be determined; however, it is management's belief that
the final contract settlements will not have a material adverse effect on the Company's consolidated financial
position or results of operations.

(c) Litigation

Two former employees have commenced an action in the United States District Court, District of New Jersey,
against the Company and others asserting, among other things, breach of certain restricted stock agreements and
seeking unspecified monetary damages, specific performance of the restricted stock agreements, including the
issuance of an aggregate 225,000 shares of the Company’s Common Stock for a purchase price of $.10 per share,
and other relief.  The Company believes it has meritorious defenses to all the claims asserted and intends to
vigorously defend the action.  It has filed an answer and has asserted certain counterclaims.  There is a pending
motion of the plaintiffs to dismiss the counterclaims and to strike certain of the affirmative defenses.  The

Company
has opposed the motion and cross-moved to dismiss the claims of one plaintiff.

The Company is subject to certain legal actions, which arise out of the normal course of business.  It is management's
belief that the outcome of these actions will not have a material adverse effect on the Company's consolidated
financial position or results of operations.

(d)  Employment Contract

 Mr. Kornberg, the Company’s Chairman of the Board of Directors, Chief Executive Officer and President is
employed pursuant to an agreement, which was amended and restated in October 2001, which provides, among
other things, for his employment until 2003 at a current base compensation of $385,000 per annum and incentive
compensation equal to 3.5% of the Company’s pre-tax income plus such additional amounts, if any, as the Board
of Directors may from time to time determine.

(13) Discontinued Operations

Based upon CWI’s disappointing fiscal 1999 results of operations and its uncertain future prospects, effective July 31,
1999, the Board of Directors approved a plan to liquidate CWI by January 31, 2000. Costs and expenses, and cash
flows associated with CWI have been excluded from the respective captions in the accompanying statements of
operations and statements of cash flows.

 During fiscal 2000, the Company liquidated the operations of CWI and recorded a loss of $137,000 net of applicable income
taxes.

(14) Stockholder Rights Plan

On December 15, 1998, the Company’s Board of Directors approved the adoption of a stockholder rights plan in
which one stock purchase right (“Right”) was distributed as a dividend on each outstanding share of the
Company’s common stock to stockholders of record at the close of business on January 4, 1999.  Under the
plan, the Rights will be exercisable only if triggered by a person or group’s acquisition of 15% or more of
the Company’s common stock.  If triggered, each Right, other than Rights held by the acquiring person or
group, would entitle its holder to purchase a specified number of the Company’s common shares for 50% of
their market value at that time.  Unless a 15% acquisition has occurred, the Rights may be redeemed by the
Company at any time prior to the termination date of the plan.
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This Right to purchase common stock at a discount will not be triggered by a person’s or group’s acquisition of
15% or more of the common stock pursuant to a tender or exchange offer which is for all outstanding shares
at a price and on terms that Comtech’s Board of Directors determines (prior to acquisition) to be adequate
and in the best interest of the Company an its stockholders.  The Rights will expire on December 15, 2008.

(15) Impact of Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2001, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 141, Business Combinations, and
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. 
Statement 141 requires that the purchase method of accounting be used for all business combinations.  Statement
141 also specifies criteria that intangible assets acquired in a purchase method business combination must meet to
be recognized and reported separately from goodwill. Statement 142 will require that goodwill and intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives no longer be amortized, but instead tested for impairment at least annually in
accordance with the provisions of Statement 142.  Statement 142 will also require that intangible assets with
definite useful lives be amortized over their respective estimated useful lives to their estimated residual values, and
reviewed for impairment in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 121, Accounting for
the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed of. 

The Company adopted the provisions of Statement 141 effective July 1, 2001.  The adoption of Statement 141 had no
 effect on the financial position or results of operations of the Company.  Statement 142 is effective for the
Company beginning August 1, 2001.  At that time, any goodwill and intangible assets determined to have an
indefinite useful life that were acquired in a purchase business combination will not be amortized, but will be
evaluated for impairment in accordance with the provisions of Statement 142. 

Statement 141 requires, upon adoption of Statement 142, that the Company evaluate its existing intangible assets and
goodwill that were acquired in a prior purchase business combination, and to make any necessary
reclassifications in order to conform with the new criteria in Statement 141 for recognition apart from
goodwill.  Upon adoption of Statement 142, the Company will be required to reassess the useful lives and
residual values of all intangible assets acquired in purchase business combinations, and make any necessary
amortization period adjustments by the end of the first interim period after adoption.  In addition, to the

extent
an intangible asset is identified as having an indefinite useful life, the Company will be required to test the
intangible asset for impairment in accordance with the provisions of Statement 142 within the first interim
period.  Any impairment loss will be measured as of the date of adoption and recognized as the cumulative
effect of a change in accounting principle in the first interim period. 

As of August 1, 2001, the Company had unamortized goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives of
$17.7 million.  Such assets will no longer be amortized under Statement 142.  The Company does not believe
that the goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives were impaired as of August 1, 2001. 
Amortization expense relating to such assets in fiscal 2002 would be $1.7 million if Statement 142 was
not adopted.
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(16) Unaudited Quarterly Financial Data

The following is a summary of unaudited quarterly operating results (amount in thousands, except per share data):

Fiscal 2001
First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter       Total

Net sales $          
39,846

                   
33,111

                32,322                 30,652        135,931

Gross profit 13,108 12,656 12,343 10,497 48,604
Net income 2,007 1,872 1,527 1,308 6,714
Diluted income per
share

$              
0.25

                       
0.24

                   
0.19

                   
0.16

           0.85*

Fiscal 2000
First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter       Total

Net sales $              11,747                 13,717                 15,485               
25,495

        66,444

Gross profit 3,341 4,141 4,387 8,633        20,502
Income (loss) from
    continuing operations 535 662 971 (5,972) (3,804)
Net income (loss) 535 662 971 (6,109) (3,941)
Diluted income (loss)   
    per share from
    continuing operations $                  0.11                    

0.13
                   
0.13

               
(0.82)

         (0.67)*

Diluted income (loss)
    per share $                  0.11                    

0.13
                   
0.13

               
(0.84)

         (0.69)*

* Income per share information for the full fiscal year may not equal the total of the quarters within the year as a result of (i) a loss
      in a quarter or the full year, and (ii) rounding.
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Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves

Years ended July 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999

Column A Column B Column C Column D Column E
       Additions        
(1) (2)

Charged to
Balance at Charged to other Transfers Balance at
beginning cost and accounts - (deductions) end of

Description of period expenses describe describe period

Allowance for doubtful accounts -
accounts receivable:

Year ended July 31,:
2001  $     806,000 39,000(C) - - 845,000
2000         145,000 - -                   661,000  (E)
1999  170,000 -                                        (25,000) (D) 145,000

Inventory reserves:
Year ended July 31,:

2001  $  2,529,000 264,000(A) - (513,000)(B) 2,280,000
2000 1,170,000 244,000(A) - 1,115,000 (E) 2,529,000
1999 829,000            341,000(A) -                   - 1,170,000

(A) Increase in reserves for obsolete and slow moving inventory and losses on contracts.
(B) Write-off of inventory.
(C) Increase in allowance for doubtful accounts.
(D) Write-off of uncollectible receivables.
(E)  Acquired in acquisition of EF Data.
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